
 

Please contact Gill Ferguson on  0151 471 7395 or e-mail 
gill.ferguson@halton.gov.uk  for further information. 
The next meeting of the Committee is on Thursday, 1 April 2010 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 

ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH  
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
 

PART 1 
 
 

Item Page No 
  
1. MINUTES 
 

 

2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   
 

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
personal or personal and prejudicial interest which they have in 
any item of business on the agenda no later than when that item 
is reached and, with personal and prejudicial interests (subject 
to certain exceptions in the Code of Conduct for Members), to 
leave the meeting prior to discussion and voting on the item. 
 

 
 

3. HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE PORTFOLIO 
 

 

 (A) FEES & CHARGES (ADULT SOCIAL CARE)   
 

1 - 5 

 (B) 2010-11 INFLATIONARY UPLIFT FOR THE JOINT 
SUPPORTING PEOPLE & ADULT SOCIAL CARE 
CONTRACTS   

 

6 - 8 

Executive Board Sub Committee 
 
Thursday, 18 March 2010 10.00 a.m. 
Marketing Suite, Municipal Building 

Public Document Pack



 
 
  
Item Page No 
  

 

 (C) 2010-11 INFLATIONARY INCREASES FOR ADULT 
SOCIAL CARE   

 

9 - 13 

 (D) MODUS SOFTWARE   
 

14 - 17 

 (E) REQUEST TO WAIVE STANDING ORDERS FOR 
VISUAL IMPAIRMENT SERVICES   

 

18 - 21 

 (F) REVIEW OF DIRECT PAYMENTS POLICY & 
PROCEDURE   

 

22 - 72 

 (G) 2010/11 CHARGES FOR RIVERVIEW GYPSY SITE   
 

73 - 74 

4. PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION, REGENERATION AND 
RENEWAL PORTFOLIO 

 

 

 (A) REVIEW OF FEES AND CHARGES   
 

75 - 84 

5. CORPORATE SERVICES PORTFOLIO 
 

 

 (A) MARKET STALL CHARGES   
 

85 - 86 

PART II 
 

 

  In this case the Board has a discretion to exclude the 
press and public and, in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted, it is RECOMMENDED that under Section 100A(4) of 
the Local Government Act 1972, having been satisfied that in all 
the circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining 
the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information, the press and public be excluded from the meeting 
for the following item of business on the grounds that it involves 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act. 
 

 

6. HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE PORTFOLIO 
 

 

 (A) AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR THE PROVISION OF 
A MINOR ADAPTATION SERVICE   

 

87 - 94 

 
 
 
In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is 
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation 
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and 
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block. 



REPORT TO: 
 

Executive Board Sub Committee  

DATE: 
 

18 March 2010  

REPORTING OFFICER: 
 

Strategic Director – Health & Community 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Review of Fees & Charges – Health & 
Community Directorate 2010-2011 
 

WARD(S) 
 

Borough-wide 

  

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
1.1 To present to the Executive Board Sub Committee the proposed increases 

in fees and charges for Health & Community Care Services. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That the Executive Board Sub Committee 
approves the proposed changes in fees and charges outlined in 
Appendix 1. 

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
3.1 The Appendices to this report show the current charges for social care 

services and the proposed charges for 2010-2011. 
 

• Appendix 1 – Health & Community Services 
 
3.2 Fees and charges for social care services listed have been inflated by 

2.0% for 2010-2011 for residential services and non-residential services 
where a standard charge is applied. 

 
3.3 Fees and charges for home care, day care and direct payments have been 

frozen.  These charges are affected by the changes to the Fairer Charging 
for Non-Residential Services Policy already agreed. 

 
3.4 Direct Payment hourly rates have been uplifted by 2.0% in accordance with 

the approved inflationary allowances allocated by the Council. 
 
3.4  Fees and charges for Health and Community will be increased with effect 

from 12th April 2010 to coincide with the date of the annual increase in 
Benefits rates.  

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None. 
 
5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

Agenda Item 3aPage 1



5.1  Provision exists to meet any increased expenditure to providers within the 
Council’s approved budget.  Similarly, budgets were drawn up for 2010-
2011, increasing charges by 2.0%. 

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 

 
6.1 Children & Young People in Halton  

 
None identified. 
 

6.2 Employment, Learning & Skills in Halton  
 
None identified. 
 

6.3 A Healthy Halton 
 
The provision of care services that meet peoples needs improves their 
health and wellbeing. 
 

6.4 A Safer Halton  
 
The provision of care services that meet peoples needs increases 
their safety and mitigates risks. 
 

6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 
None identified. 
 

7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 

7.1 The Local Government Act 2003 includes a general power for best 
value to charge for discretionary services i.e. those services that the 
authority has the power, but is not obliged, to provide.  Guidance is 
issued under the power in section 93, which states charges are limited 
to cost recovery.  The Department of Health’s fairer Charging Policies 
for Home care and other Non-Residential Social Services Guidance, 
Sept 2003, states that where Councils charge for non-residential 
services, flat rate charges are acceptable. 
 

8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 

8.1 Increases will be applied through a transparent and equitable      
process.       
 

9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
None 

 

Page 2



SOCIAL CARE FEES & CHARGES      APPENDIX 1 
 
SECTION 1 – CHARGES FOR CARE 
 

 

 Current 
2009-2010             

£  

 Proposed 
2010-2011        

£  

Maximum Weekly Charge for Residential Care     

Residential Care for Older People in Council homes (per week)       350.88          357.90  

Dementia Residential care for Older People in Council homes (per week)       413.71          421.98  

Adults with Learning Disability receiving respite services (per week)       504.18         514.26 

Adults in Family Placements (per week)       369.51          376.90  

Meals in the Community    

Family Placement Breakfast           1.72              1.75  

Family Placement Lunch           2.14              2.18  

Family Placement Tea           1.99              2.03  

Meals - delivered to people in their own homes           2.82              2.88  

Meals - Tea Time pack delivered to people in their own homes           1.96              2.00  

Meals - Community Day Care           3.00              3.06  

Meals - Day Centre users                   -    

Light Breakfast           1.16              1.18  

Cooked Breakfast           1.78              1.82  

Light Meal           1.65              1.68  

Cooked Meal           2.20              2.24  

Visitors and Guests    

Accommodation (per night)         10.40            10.61  

Breakfast           2.63              2.68  

Light Meal           3.37              3.44  

Main Meal           4.59              4.68  

Maximum Charges for Community-based Care    

Domiciliary Care (per hour)         11.35            11.35  

Day Care (per session)         14.86            14.86  

Family Placement (per session)         14.86            14.86  

Dorset Gardens support charge (per week)         10.00           10.20 

Handyperson Service (per hour)         N/A              5.00  

Night time service (per week)         23.25           23.60 

Charge those who receive High Rate DLA Care/AA the amount of Benefit 
they receive to pay for night care services in proportion to the amount of 
night care service that the Council pay to provide them with.  A night care 
service is defined as a service either under a sleep in session or waking 
night service between the hours of 10pm to 8am.     

Transport (per journey)           1.03              1.05  
The charge is per trip to a maximum charge per week of £xx, except for 
service users on the higher rate of DLA Mobility component for whom it will 
be up to a maximum of 50% of the higher rate of DLA Mobility component.  
i.e. £xx per week.  Trips beyond 10 miles of Halton's boundary to be charged 
separately.     

 
People’s ability to pay charges for Residential Care is assessed under 
Government Guidelines (CRAG).  Charges for Community Care are assessed 
under the Councils Fairer Charging and service users are given the opportunity to 
detail the extra spending they have as a result of their special needs before their 
charge for care is calculated. 
 

Page 3



SECTION 2 - COMMUNITY WARDENS/LIFELINE CHARGES FOR SERVICE 
 

 

 Current 
2009-2010             

£  

 Proposed 
2010-2011        

£  

Level 1 Call centre monitoring plus community warden reactive response.  
(Assessment and support plan, review within the first 6 weeks and then 6 
monthly, unless further review is indicated.)           5.42              5.53  

Level 2 Call centre monitoring plus reactive callout.  Community warden visits 
up to two weekly, according to assessed need and support planning.           6.49              6.62  

Level 3 Call centre monitoring plus reactive call out.  Community warden daily 
visits according to assessed need and support planning.  Assistive technology 
is provided according to assessed need.           8.65              8.82  

Intermediate care, short term assessment and monitoring, including assistive 
technology 

Non- 
chargeable 

Non- 
chargeable 

 
 
 
 

Page 4



SECTION 3 – FEES PAID TO CARE PROVIDERS AND SERVICE USERS 
  

 

 Current 
2009-2010             

£  

 Proposed 
2010-2011        

£  

Direct Payments    

Standard Rate - Personal Assistant (hourly rate)          9.35             9.54  

Standard Rate - Agency (hourly rate)        10.70            10.91  

Complex Rate - Personal Assistant (hourly rate)        11.36            11.59  

Complex Rate - Agency (hourly rate)        11.36            11.59  

     

Payments for Adult Family Placements    

Family Placement (per week)      369.51          376.90  

Family Placement (per 6 hour session) 1 person        31.67            32.30  

Family Placement (per 3 hour session) 1 person        15.84            16.16  

Family Placement (per 6 hour session) 2 people        52.79            53.85  

Family Placement (per 3 hour session) 2 people        26.40            26.93  

Family Placement (per 6 hour session) 3 people        63.34            64.61  

Family Placement (per 3 hour session) 3 people        31.67            32.30  

Family Placement (night care per night)        52.79            53.85  

      

Charges to other Local Authorities     

Older People in Residential homes (per week)      397.34          405.29  
Older People in Residential Dementia placements in Council homes (per 
week)      570.78          582.20  

Older People in Intermediate Care placements in Council homes (per week)      538.74          549.51  

Adults in Supported Accomodation (per week)      504.18          514.26  

Day Care - Older People (per session)        39.80            40.60  

Day care - Adults with Learning Disability (per session)        59.12            60.30  

Day Care - Adults with Physical/Sensory Disability (per session)        82.85            84.51  

      

Appointee/Receivership Charges     

Securing Property        79.19            80.77  

Continuous monitoring of property when the property holder is unable to do 
so (cost per hour)        21.11            21.53  

Storage of Wills (annual cost)        15.84            16.16  

Property searches, meter readings etc (cost per hour)        21.11            21.53  

Duchy of Lancaster Referrals where people have died intestate Actual cost   Actual cost  

 
 

 

Social Care, Housing 

and Health Directorate 

 
 

Page 5



REPORT TO: 
 

Executive Board Sub Committee 

DATE: 
 

18 March 2010  

REPORTING OFFICER: 
 

Strategic Director – Health & Community 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

2010/11 Inflationary uplift for the Supporting 
People contracts 
 

WARD(S) 
 

Borough-wide 

 
 

1.0 
 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1  To seek approval for the inflationary uplift of Supporting People   
contracts for the financial year 2010/11.  
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
That members of the Executive Board Sub-Committee approve 
a 2% inflationary uplift. 
 

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

3.1 The Supporting People programme currently funds 113 services 
across Halton and were services provide both care and support; 
Halton Borough Council has entered into a joint contract for the 
provision of these services.   
 

3.2 It is proposed to award a 2% inflationary uplift on SP contracts, 
which is in line with the proposed increase to Adult Social Care 
contracts and the increase on Adult Social Care fees and charges.   
 

3.3 The table below sets out the projected expenditure after the 2% 
inflationary uplift has been added for 2010/11. 
 

 Table 1 
 
Supporting People contract values: 
 

 09/10 2 % uplift 
costs for 10/11 

Projected 
expenditure 

 
6,855,378 

 

 
6,992,486 

 
  +137,108 

   
 

3.4 The increased fees will give enable providers to plan their business 

Agenda Item 3bPage 6



and ensure stability of provision for the service users of Halton. 
 

4.0 
 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 
 

None. 

5.0 FINANICIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

5.1 Provision exists to meet any increased expenditure to providers 
within existing Supporting People budgets. 
 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 

6.1 Children & Young People in Halton  
 
Supporting People services support to vulnerable care leavers, 
homeless young people and teenage parents to maximise their 
potential for independent living and to sustain and rebuild 
relationships in order to remain at home.  
 

6.2 Employment, Learning & Skills in Halton  
 
Supporting People services provide support to enable vulnerable 
clients to access education, training and employment opportunities. 
 

6.3 A Healthy Halton 
 
Supporting People services work with vulnerable clients to achieve 
their goals to achieving a healthy lifestyle, which can include for 
example support to maintain their mental well being, to register and 
attend GP and dental appointments. 
 

6.4 A Safer Halton  
 
Supporting People services provide support to a number of socially 
excluded groups including ex-offenders, people with mental health 
problems, people experiencing domestic violence, homeless families 
and single homeless. The support offered empowers people to 
secure and maintain a stable home environment in which to rebuild 
their lives. 
 

6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 
None identified. 
 

7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 

7.1 Approval of a 2% increase will ensure stability of provision across 
the social care sector.  
 

Page 7



8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 

8.1 Increases will be applied through a transparent and equitable      
process.       
 

9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 

None.  
 

  
 

Page 8



REPORT TO: Executive Board Sub Committee 
 
DATE: 18th March 2010  
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director Health and Community 
 
SUBJECT: Inflationary Increases for Adult Social Care 2010/11 
 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To present to the Executive Board Sub Committee the proposed 2010/11 

inflationary increases for Adult Social Care contracts. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 That the Executive Board Sub Committee approve:- 
 

(i) an inflationary uplift  for providers of Domiciliary, Residential & 
Nursing contracts of 2%, which is within the inflationary 
allowance allocated by the Council to Social Services for 2010/11. 

 
(ii) inflationary uplifts for out-of- borough placements on a case-by-

case basis, limited to the 2% HBC inflationary increase or the 
prevailing Local Authority rate.  

 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION  
 
3.1 Domiciliary Care 
 

3.2 Residential and Nursing Care Fees 
 

Again, in line with the approved 2 % inflationary uplift on Social Care budgets 
in 2010/11, it is proposed that contracts for the provision of Residential and 
Nursing placements are awarded an equivalent inflationary uplift of 2%.  

 
3.3   The new fees for residential and nursing care are stated in   Appendix 1.  
   
 
3.4 Out of Borough Placements 
 

It is proposed that the inflationary increase applied to out of borough 
placements is decided on a case by case basis as follows:- 
 

 The Council have approved a 2% inflationary uplift on Social Care budgets for 
2010/11. It is therefore proposed that contracts for the provision of Domiciliary 
Care are awarded an equivalent inflationary uplift of 2%. 

 

Agenda Item 3cPage 9



• Providers to be informed that inflationary increase will be subject to 
submission of a written request to HBC contracts department within a 
specific timeframe 

• Any increase within the agreed HBC rate of 2% to be approved and 
applied. 

 
Any increase above 2% to be approved by a relevant Operational Director, 
based on the information submitted by the provider, confirmation of the host 
authorities approved inflationary rate and knowledge of the ongoing need for 
the specific service. This is consistent with historical practice. 
 

4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None identified.  

 
5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1 Provision exists to meet any increased expenditure to providers within the 

Council’s approved budget. 
 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 

6.1 Children and Young People in Halton 
 
None identified. 
 

6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
 
None identified 
 

6.3 A Healthy Halton 
 
The provision of care services that meet peoples needs improves their 
health and wellbeing. 
 

6.4 A Safer Halton 
 
The provision of care services that meet peoples needs increases their 
safety and mitigates risks. 

 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 

 
None identified 
 

7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 

7.1 Approval of a 2% increase will ensure stability of provision across the social 
care sector.  
 

8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 

Page 10



 
8.1 Increases will be applied through a transparent and equitable process.   

 
  9.0  LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENTACT 1972 
 
 None.  
 
 
 

Page 11



APPENDIX 1

Residential and Nursing Care

Current (2009/10) 

Rate
£

Proposed 

% Increase

Basic Residential 350.88 2

Dementia Residential 413.71 2

Basic Nursing
374.93 + 

FNC*
2 plus FNC

EMI Nursing
431.18 + 

FNC*
2 plus FNC

* FNC Costs paid by 

PCT

2009/10 -Projected  

Expenditure of 

Residential Care exc 

SP 7,158,139

The costs of 

implementing the 2% 

inflationary increase
143,162         

Total 7,301,301

Domiciliary Care

Provider Name
Current Price 

(£)

Proposed 

% Increase

Primrose Care 10.50 2

Just Care 10.70 2

Homecare Support 10.88 2

Carewatch 10.96 2

Local Solutions 11.00 2

Caring Hands 11.75 2

Castlerock Care 11.09 2

M-Power 12.25 2

First Call Healthcare 11.25 2

Sankey Healthcare 11.00 2

DH Homecare 11.96 2

2009/10 -Projected  

Expenditure of 

Domicilary Care exc 

DP & SP 4,046,329

12.20

11.31

12.50

11.48

11.22

11.10

11.18

11.22

11.99

439.80

New Cost (£)

2%

10.71

10.91

357.90

421.98

New Cost (£)

2%

382.43

Page 12



The costs of 

implementing the 2% 

inflationary increase

80,926

Total 4,127,255

Page 13



 
REPORT TO:  Executive Board Sub Committee 
 
DATE: 18th March 2010 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director – Health & Community 
 
SUBJECT: MODUS Software 
 
WARDS: Borough Wide 
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
1.1 To seek agreement to enter into a contract without seeking three written 

quotations in order to comply with procurement standing order 4.1, which 
places a requirement on the Council to invite quotations or tender for 
contracts with a value less than £50,000 unless the Operational Director 
and Monitoring Officer agree otherwise. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That 
 

(1) Paloma Systems Ltd. be appointed to provide MODUS software 
and support services in the sum of £14,500 over the period March 
2010 to March 2012. 

 
(2) In light of the exceptional circumstances, namely compliance with 

standing orders is not practical due to time and spend conditions of 
the Home Office grant available and specialist software required, 
and in accordance with procurement standing orders 1.6, 
procurement standing orders 4.1 be waived on this occasion.  

  

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
3.1 Presently the Halton Domestic Abuse Forum (HDAF) monitors the Halton 

Domestic Abuse Service through data provided by the commissioned 
service for Performance Management Framework.  There is no access to 
real time live data and no audit process to check for reliability.  A similar 
system exists for the data collection from the ISVA provider.  Thus, a 
need has been identified for a more robust approach to performance 
management and data collection. 
 
MODUS software, developed by Paloma Systems Ltd, for use by Local       
Authority Areas provides the HDAF with the ability to collate information     
collected around Government Crime Reduction Initiatives and is a Home 
Office endorsed tool.  This software system is able to meet the Local 
Authorities requirements in this area with the following specific elements: 

o Specific IDVA (Independent Domestic Violence Advisor) and 
ISVA case management 

Agenda Item 3dPage 14



o SDVC (Specialist Domestic Violence Court) monitoring  
o Data collection in relation to NI 26 and NI 32   
o SARC (Sexual Assault Referral Centre) data collection 
o MARAC (Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference) automatic 

referral and action list capabilities. 
 
4.0 BUSINESS CASE FOR WAIVERING TENDERING SO’S 
 
4.1 VALUE FOR MONEY AND COMPETITION 
 
4.1.1 Following Halton’s expression of interest a pan-Cheshire approach to 

MODUS adoption was identified as a cost saving exercise that could 
lead to greater tracking ability of Domestic Abuse cases within the 
Cheshire region.  Cheshire East and West and Warrington areas have 
confirmed plans to purchase this software. As a result, Paloma 
Systems Ltd. has agreed that they will allow the significant server 
licence cost to be divided between all four areas which would offer 
Halton a cost saving of £3,750. 

 
4.1.2 During discussions around this initiative a Government Grant has been 

awarded to the value of £14,500 to purchase MODUS software.  This 
grant is allocated specifically to this purchase and requires use by 
March 31st 2010.   

 
4.1.3 At this time there do not appear to be any other potential providers for 

this software that offers the same capacity as outlined above in section 
3. 

 
4.1.4 The Local Authority currently has an opportunity to make significant 

cost savings in relation to this project that would not otherwise be 
available due to joint area initiatives and government grant availability. 

 
4.2 TRANSPARENCY 
 
4.2.1 These proposals are open to scrutiny via internal and external audit 

and via the Freedom of Information Act. 
 
4.2.2 The contract would be awarded based on grant approval and software 

endorsed by central government. 
 
4.3 PROPERTY AND SECURITY 
 
4.3.1 Integrity clauses will be built into the contract document. 
 
4.3.2 The contract, if approved, will fully comply with HBC’s Standing Orders. 
 
4.4 ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
4.4.1 This remains with the Operational Director, Culture and Leisure 

Services, in conjunction with the relevant portfolio holder. 

Page 15



 
4.4.2 All matters will be scrutinised by internal/external audit and the relevant 

Policy and Performance Board. 
 
4.4.3 POSITION OF THE CONTRACT UNDER THE PUBLIC CONTRACTS 

REGULATIONS 2006 
 
4.4.4 The contract is fully compliant, and subject to fundamental 

transparency and non-distortion of competition requirements. 
 
5.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 There are currently limited financial implications for this proposal as the  

contract value will be met through an already identified Home Office 
Grant. 

 
5.2 This proposal will support the Safer Halton priority through provision of  

a robust data infrastructure to support those services to victims of  
serious and sexual violence.  The proposal has been reviewed and  
endorsed by the Safer Halton PPB working group. 
 

5.3 ICT have confirmed they could see no specific issues with MODUS  
purchase as it is a web based software and does not require any on 
site hardware.  Thus, there do not appear to be any issues in relation to 
the Code of Conduct. 

 
6.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 Children & Young People in Halton  
 

This proposal helps to support robust safeguarding children 
arrangements. 

 
6.2 Employment, Learning & Skills in Halton  
 

None identified. 
 
6.3 A Healthy Halton 
 

This proposal supports the delivery of services that address health 
inequalities. 

 
6.4 A Safer Halton 
 

The improved collation and analysis of data collected by the system 
should ensure better planning, commissioning & delivery of services. 

 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal  
 

None identified. 

Page 16



 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 Not approving this proposal will result in the following: 
 

i. Loss of the awarded £14,500 Home Office Grant 
 

ii. Loss of a pan-Cheshire victim and perpetrator tracking 
capability 

 
7.2 Whilst adoption of this software could occur at a later date it cannot be 

guaranteed that external sources of funding could be identified and 
secured.  Thus, failure to move forward with the MODUS proposal 
within the 2009 financial year may preclude the HDAF participating in 
this initiative in the future. 

 
7.3 Similarly, it has been identified that this system has potential for 

improving resource capacity for the IDVA service so ongoing 
implications could be less support to victims of Domestic Abuse. 

 
7.4 The contract awarded and subsequent monitoring will comply with 

procurement standing orders. 
 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 

 
8.1 There are currently no known issues in relation to this software 

impacting on diversity or equality issues.  It should be noted that this 
software does contain the potential for greater recording of black and 
minority ethnic community issues within Domestic Abuse should it be 
decided to utilise those elements in the future.  For example, a data 
field to collate data in relation to Honour Based Violence. 

 
8.2 Agencies awarded a contract would be expected to comply with the 

Council policies relating to Ethnicity and Cultural Diversity as well as 
promoting inclusion. 
 

9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 
N/A 

 
 
 

Page 17



REPORT TO: 
 

Executive Board Sub Committee 

DATE: 
 

18th March 2010 

REPORTING OFFICER: 
 

Strategic Director Health & Community 

SUBJECT: 
 

Request to waive Standing Orders for Visual 
Impairment Services  
 

WARD(S) 
 

Borough-Wide 

 
 

1.0 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1.1  To request the suspension of the relevant procurement standing orders 3.1 to 
3.9 under the exceptional circumstances set out in this report, which places a 
requirement on the Council to tender or obtain quotes for contracts set up with 
external providers in the voluntary and independent sector. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that: 
 
i) the Operational Director, Health & Partnerships be authorised to 

award the contract for visual impairment support services to the 
contractor Vision Support in the sum of £128,094 as outlined in 
5.1 below and that in light of the exceptional circumstances, 
namely that the current contract offers value for money and is 
performing well in meeting the needs of service users and in 
accordance with Procurement SO 1.6:-  

 
• Standing Orders 3.1 to 3.9 be waived on this occasion because 

Vision Support are the only established provider in Halton 
offering such services and in view of compliance with standing 
orders being inconsistent with partnership funding 
arrangements.  

 
• The contract will be in the name of Halton Borough Council 

whilst the service specification will reflect the desired Health 
and Social Care outcomes of both the local authority and NHS 
Halton and St Helens. 

 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
3.1 In 2008 the Healthy Halton Policy & Performance Board reviewed sensory 

impairment services including those provided by Vision Support. The review 
concluded that the service offered valuable support to visually impaired 
people through its base at the Independent Living Centre and through visiting 
people in their own homes.  

Agenda Item 3ePage 18



 
3.2 In March 2009 Executive Sub Committee waived standing orders to allow a 

contract to be awarded to Vision Support for the period 1st April 2009 to 31st 
March 2010. 
 

3.3 The 2008 scrutiny review identified that NHS Halton and St Helens also fund 
Vision Support  and recommended that: 
 
“Agreement be sought from NHS Halton and St Helens for the Council to lead 
on commissioning services from Vision Support and a revised service 
specification incorporating both funding streams be agreed.” 
 

3.4 The NHS Halton and St Helens has now confirmed its level of funding for 
Vision Support and is in agreement that one joint contract be put in place and 
that the Council hold this contract. Some amendments are required to the 
performance framework within the specification to reflect the desired health 
improvement outcomes and Vision Support are aware of this. Overall, one 
contract will be less onerous for the provider.  
 

4.0 BUSINESS CASE FOR THE CONTRACT EXTENSION 
 

4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 

Value for money and Competition 
 

The Value of the proposed joint contract is small and it would not make 
commercial sense to invite tenders as the cost would outweigh any potential 
saving. As discussed in section 3.1 the Policy & Performance Board scrutiny 
review valued the services offered by Vision Support. 

 
Transparency 
 
In order to ensure transparency it is proposed that the service will submit 
performance reports in accordance with the desired outcomes set by NHS 
Halton and St Helens and the Council. The frequency and detail will be 
agreed by the relevant Commissioning Manager as part of the contract 
completion process. 

 
Propriety and Security 
 

The extension of this contract complies with Halton Borough Council’s 
standing orders and procurement. Compliance with anti corruption practices 
will be adhered to and the contract will be terminated if any instances of 
corruption by any organization or its staff members occur. The cost of entering 
into these contracts will be contained within existing available budgetary 
provision. 

 
Accountability  
 

All services will be performance managed through the commissioning 
managers. Performance will be scrutinised by the Physical and Sensory 
Disability Local Implementation Team.  

Page 19



 
 
 
4.5 
 

 
 
 
Position of the contract under the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 
 
As this is for care services, these contracts are largely exempt from the 2006 
Regulations so there is no need to advertise for expressions of interest in the 
official Journal. 
 

5.0 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 
 

The value of the Council element of the contract for 2009/10 is £25,630. NHS 
Halton and St Helens element is £17,068. Given the projected financial 
climate in the public sector and the need to ensure maximum flexibility around 
financial commitments, it is proposed to award a contract from April 2010 with 
the option to extend this annually for a period up to March 2013. The potential 
total cost of the contract at April 2009 prices is £128,094 split between the 
Council £76,890 and NHS Halton & St. Helens £51,204. Any inflationary 
uplifts awarded will be in line with those agreed by the Council and NHS 
Halton and St Helens and will be applied to the respective funding elements. 
 

6.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 None at present. 
 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 

6.1 Children and Young People in Halton 
 
The service support Halton residents of all ages. 
 

6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
 

The range of low level preventative services and support offered by this 
provider help to enable visually impaired people to access education, training 
and employment opportunities.  
 

6.3 A Healthy Halton  
 
These services are expected to clearly demonstrate their impact on the health 
and well-being of service users in Halton. This includes performance towards 
healthier lifestyles, better access and improved mental health outcomes.  
 

6.4 A Safer Halton  
 
These services will be able to support specific Local Area Agreement targets 
linked to information provision, satisfaction with services and people’s overall 
perception of the area that they reside. These targets will be agreed as part of 
any revised contract and will be monitored through the relevant 
Commissioning Manager. 

Page 20



 
 
 

6.5 Halton’s urban renewal  
 

None identified. 
 
 

7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 

7.1 None identified. 
 

8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 

8.1 Reference to equality and diversity issues will be detailed in any contracts 
awarded to voluntary agencies. 
 

9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

  

Document 
 

Place of Inspection 
 

Contact Officer 

Healthy Halton Policy & 
Performance Board Scrutiny 
report September 2008 

Runcorn Town Hall Operational 
Director – Adults of 
Working Age  

 

Page 21



REPORT TO: 
 

Executive Board Sub Committee 

DATE: 
 

18th March 2010 

REPORTING OFFICER: 
 

Strategic Director – Health & Community 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Review of Direct Payments Policy & Procedure 

WARD(S) 
 

Borough-wide 

 
 

1.0 
 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1  To provide the Board with an update of changes to Direct Payments  
Regulations and seek approval for the changes to the draft Direct  
Payments Policy & Procedure for Adults Social Care. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
That members of the Executive Board Sub Committee approve 
the amendments to the Direct Payments Policy & Procedure 
(Appendix 1) in order to reflect:- 
 
• the changes introduced by the Department of Health 

extending the direct payments scheme; and  
 

• the recommendations from ADASS, “Personalisation and 
the Law: Implementing Putting People First in the current 
legal framework”. 

 
3.0 BACKGROUND 

 
3.1 Halton Borough Council is committed to increasing the number of 

people who receive Direct Payments and Personal Budgets.  Direct 
Payments are crucial to achieving the government’s aim to increase 
independence, choice and control for service users and their carers 
through allowing them the opportunity to arrange their own 
personalised care.  They give people the freedom to design services 
around their specific circumstances and needs, resulting in better 
outcomes for both the service user and their carer.  They are a key 
part of the transformation of adult social care agenda set out in 
Putting People First.  
 

3.2 The removal of the blanket exclusion of people who are subject to 
various provisions of mental health and criminal justice legislation 
has also been lifted.  Consideration should be given to people in 
these groups to have the chance to benefit from direct payments, 
where the circumstances are right and we agree that they are 
appropriate.  A power to make such payments in respect of some 
categories of these people or for certain services and a duty to make 
direct payments in other circumstances subject to certain 

Agenda Item 3fPage 22



exclusions. 
 

3.3 
 

From 9th November 2009 new regulations extended the direct 
payments scheme to people who lack the capacity to consent, and 
to people with mental health problems who are subject to mental 
health and certain criminal justice legislation. With certain 
exceptions, we now have a duty to make direct payments in respect 
of a person lacking capacity, provided that there is a willing suitable 
person who meets all the conditions set out in the Regulations.  
People benefiting from this extension of the direct payment scheme 
may include, for example, some adults with head injuries and some 
people with dementia.  In addition, severely disabled children 
moving into adulthood, who would previously have lost the direct 
payments they receive as a chid, can now continue to receive them 
on reaching the age of 18. 
 

3.4 In the first instance, we will need to establish whether someone who 
has offered to act as a suitable person qualifies as a representative.  
Someone can be made a representative in one of two ways: 
 
• If the person has been given lasting power of attorney by the 

person needing services at some point before they lost mental 
capacity. 

 
• If the person has been appointed a deputy for the person 

needing services by the Court of Protection under section 16 of 
the Mental Capacity Act 2005. 
 

There may be specific circumstances in which a person other than 
the representative, in particular a close family member or a friend 
involved in the provision of care, is considered to be the most 
appropriate choice of suitable person by those consulted about 
making direct payments in respect of the person lacking capacity.  If 
we are satisfied that this arrangement would work in the best 
interests of the person lacking capacity, then it may with agreement, 
accept that individual as the suitable person.  
 

3.5 The Association of Directors of Adult Social Services (ADASS) has 
developed a document “Personalisation and the law: Implementing 
Putting People First in the current legal framework” to provide advice 
to councils showing how the main elements of Putting People First 
can be delivered within the current legal framework.   ADASS 
advises that giving the ‘suitable person’ the direct payment net of the 
user’s contribution/charge, would clearly be inadvisable, leaving 
them short of necessary funds, might be regarded as contributing to 
adult abuse risks.   
 

3.6 Payment net of the clients’ contribution under the Health and Social 
Services and Social Security Adjudications Act (HASSASSA) 1983 
and fairer charging may put the suitable person in the position of 
making inappropriate use of a Pin Card or online banking, to access 
the ‘other’ part of the money necessary to pay for the full package of 

Page 23



support assessed as needed.  An invoice for the client contribution 
should be sent in the usual way if a suitable person is receiving the 
direct payment on behalf of the client.   
 

4.0 
 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 
 

The DP Policy & Procedure  (Appendix 1) has been amended to: 
 
• Reflect the changes to extend direct payments to include people 

who lack the capacity to consent to the making of direct 
payments and to remove the exclusions that currently apply to 
people who are subject to various provisions of mental health 
legislation. 

 
• Reflect the guidance from ADASS to give the person the option 

to pay their client contribution towards cost of support package 
via an invoice rather than paying the direct payment net if a 
suitable person is managing the direct payment. 

 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

 
5.1 None 

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 

 

6.1 Children & Young People in Halton  
 

The proposals cover Children’s Services as the Direct Payments 
Team currently provides services to 30 Parents of Disabled Children 
via a Service Level Agreement with Children and Young People’s 
Directorate. 
 

6.2 Employment, Learning & Skills in Halton  
 

None identified. 
 

6.3 A Healthy Halton 
 

None identified. 
 

6.4 A Safer Halton  
 

None identified. 
 

6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 

None identified. 
 

7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 

7.1 
 
 

There is a risk that if the suitable person is not the spouse, civil 
partner, partner, close relative (or spouse or partner of a close 
relative) or friend involved in the provision of care of the person 

Page 24



 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
 
7.3 

lacking capacity, then as a safeguarding measure we must ensure a 
CRB check is obtained for the suitable person. 
 
A risk assessment will need to be undertaken which should inform 
the care plan/support plan about arrangements for monitoring and 
review – conducting more frequent reviews especially in the early 
stages of the direct payments being made. 
 
Independent Mental Capacity Advocates (IMCA’s) should be used in 
care reviews where the person concerned has no one else to be 
consulted. 
 

8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 

8.1 It is essential that the Council addresses equality issues, in 
particular those regarding race, gender, sexuality, age and disability 
when considering its policies and procedures. 
 

9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

Document 
 

Place of Inspection 
 

Contact Officer 

Guidance on Direct 
Payments for community 
care, services for carers and 
children’s services – 
Department of Health 
 

Runcorn Town Hall Andrea Holland Senior 
Direct 
Payments/Individualised 
Budgets Officer 

Directors of Adult Social 
Services (ADASS) 
“Personalisation and the 
Law: Implementing Putting 
People First in the current 
legal framework”. 
 

Runcorn Town Hall Andrea Holland Senior 
Direct 
Payments/Individualised 
Budgets Officer 
 

 
 

 

Page 25



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Health & Community 
Directorate 

 

 

 

Direct Payments 
 

Policy, Procedure and Practice 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT 18/03/10 
Social Care, Housing and Health 

Social Care, Housing and Health 
 

Page 26



PROCEDURE CONTINUED 

  

 0 

 

CONTENTS 

   
   
   
 Page Paragraph 

   
POLICY   
Purpose 2 1.1 
Introduction to Direct Payments 2 1.2-1.6 
Halton’s Direct Payment Scheme 2 1.7-1.9 
What Direct Payments can be used for  3 1.9 
What Direct Payments cannot be used for 3 1.10 
Who can qualify for a Direct Payment 3 1.11 
People who do not qualify for a Direct Payment 4 1.12 
Direct Payment Rates 4 1.13 
Eligibility Criteria 5 1.14 
   
   
PROCEDURE   
The 4 Stages 7 2.0-2.4 
Stage 1: Assessment 8 3.0-3.2 
Stage 2: Implementation 10 4.0-4.15 
Stage 3: Monitoring 14 5.0-5.14 
Stage 4: Reviewing 17 6.0-6.8 
   
   
APPENDICES Page 19 onwards 
   
Definitions of Willing/Able/Competence/Mental Capacity Act 19 Appendix 1 
Initial Referral Visit Checklist 20 Appendix 2 
Statement Letter 22 Appendix 3 
Bank Details Form 23 Appendix 4 
Direct Payment Contract – Client 24 Appendix 5 
Offer Letter 31 Appendix 6 
Record of Audit Checklist 32 Appendix 7 
Bank Reconciliation Form 33 Appendix 8 
Direct Payment Review Form 34 Appendix 9 
Start Up Checklist  35 Appendix 10 
Diary Notes 36 Appendix 11 
Direct Payment Contract – Carer 37 Appendix 12 
Self Certification Form 39 Appendix 13 
Direct Payment Request Form 40 Appendix 14 
Sample Income & Expenditure Form 41 Appendix 15 
Request for Reimbursement of Contingencies 43 Appendix 16 

 

Page 27



PROCEDURE CONTINUED 

  

 1 

 
INFORMATION SHEET 

 
Service area 
 
 

Health & Partnerships 

Date effective from 
 

1st April 2009 

Responsible officer(s) 
 
 

Hazel Coen - Divisional Manager  
                      (Finance& Support) 
Andrea Holland – Senior Direct 
Payments/Individualised Budgets Officer          
(Client Finance) 
 

Date of review(s) 
 

April 2010 

Status: 

• Mandatory (all named staff must adhere to 
guidance) 

• Optional (procedures and practice can vary 
between teams) 

 
Mandatory 

Target audience 
 
 

Adults and Older People’s Social Care 
Services staff 

Date of committee/SMT decision 
 

• Executive Board Sub Committee 
20.3.08 

• Healthy Halton Policy & Performance 
Board 10.6.08 

• Executive Board Sub Committee   
    25.7.08 

• Health Halton Policy & Performance 
Board 13.01.09 

• Executive Board Sub Committee 
29.01.09 

Related document(s) 
 
 

Direct Payments Guidance, Community 
Care Services for Carers and Children’s 
Services (Direct Payments) Guidance 
England 2003. 

Superseded document(s) 
 
 

1st version dated 6th December 2000 
2nd version dated 25th July 2002 
3rd version dated December 2003 
4th version dated December 2004 
5th version dated September 2005 
6th version dated November 2005 
7th version dated March 2007 
8th version dated May 2008 

File reference 
 

DP/DEC00/1 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 28



PROCEDURE CONTINUED 

  

 2 

 
 

1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.3 
 
 
 
 

1.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.5 
 
 
 
 

1.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.7 
 
 
 
 

POLICY 
Purpose 
The purpose of this Policy, Procedure and Guidance is to tell staff 
about their role and responsibility with regard to Direct Payments, 
which also encompasses the needs of people from diverse 
communities.  A separate guide has been written for people who use 
our services.  The documents complement each other and strive to 
develop the greatest degree of independence and choice for people 
who need services in Halton. 
 
Introduction to Direct Payments 
The Direct Payments Guidance Community Care Services for 
Carers and Children's Services Guidance England 2003 requires 
Social Services to make direct cash payments to enable a person to 
obtain for themselves the services that they have been assessed as 
needing, subject to eligibility.    
 
The following groups of people may be eligible for Direct Payments: 

• Older and disabled people aged 16 or over 

• People with parental responsibility for disabled children 

• Carers aged 16 or over in respect of carer services 
 
The Direct Payment is made by Social Services instead of providing 
or arranging for the provision of services.  The person then uses the  
money to purchase services to meet their assessed needs.  In the 
case of disabled children, the parent or person with parental 
responsibility secures services to meet the needs of the child and 
their family. 
  
Direct Payments must be made to all individuals who are eligible to 
receive them and want them.  Each eligible individual should be 
offered the choice of having their needs for a service met through 
Direct Payments as part of the care planning process. 
 
In determining whether someone is a suitable person to receive 
direct payments on behalf of someone who lacks capacity to make a 
decision, where there is a willing representative - that is to say either 
a court-appointed deputy or a donee of lasting power of attorney - 
that person would act as the suitable person.  However, other 
persons could also act as a suitable person.  The suitable person 
could also be a family member or a close friend already involved in 
the provision of care for the person concerned.  The council must 
still ensure that the best interests of the person lacking capacity are 
prioritised above all other considerations 
 
If a Care Manager feels it is appropriate for a third party to receive 
the Direct Payment on behalf of the person, the third party must 
open a separate dedicated bank account to receive the Direct 
Payment and must adhere to the conditions set out in the Direct 
Payment Contract. This can only be done after a full assessment of 

Practice 
Concept of Direct Payments 

"Direct Payments help people 

who want to manage their own 

support to improve their quality of 

life.  They promote independence, 

choice and inclusion by enabling 

people to purchase the assistance 

or services that the council would 

otherwise provide in order to live 

in their own homes, be fully 

involved in family and 

community life and to engage in 

work, education and leisure" 

Department of Health Direct 

Payments Guidance 2003 

 

The Direct Payment Guidance 

2003 

Replaces the Community Care 

(Direct Payments) Act 1996 

Policy and Practice Guidance 

issued in 2000, the Carers and 

Disabled Children Act 2000 

Direct Payments for young 

disabled people Policy and 

Practice Guidance issued in 2001 

and the passages on Direct 

Payments contained in the Carers 

and Disabled Children Act 2000 

Carers and people with parental 

responsibility for disabled 

children issued in 2001.  

 

Relevant services 

The duty to make Direct 

Payments applies to: 

-a community care service within 

the meaning of section 46 of the 

National Health Service and 

Community Care Act 1990 

-a service under section 2 of the 

Carers and Disabled Children Act 

2000 

-a service which local councils 

may provide may provide under 

section 17 of the 1989 Act 

(provision of services for children 

in need, their families and others) 

 

 

Government policy guidance 

"The Government wants to see 

more extensive use made of 

Direct Payments in particular by 

those groups that have not made 

wide use of them up to now.  For 

that reason local councils now 

have not just a power but a duty 

to make Direct Payments in 

certain circumstances."  This has 

Page 29



PROCEDURE CONTINUED 

  

 3 

 
 
 
 

1.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

the person’s capacity to decide about the use of Direct Payments 
has been made and documented. Also need to consider the 
situation of fluctuating capacity. 
 
Halton’s Direct Payment Scheme 
The Direct Payments Scheme was originally launched as a one-year 
pilot from January 2001.  Since then funding has been agreed to run 
the scheme on a permanent basis. 
  
The project was developed in partnership with people who use 
services, statutory, independent, voluntary sector organisations and 
representative groups and is linked to other local activities for 
example, carer services and information provision. 
 
The scheme is co-ordinated and managed by a Senior Direct 
Payment/Individualised Budget Officer, 4 Direct 
Payments/Individualised Budget Officers, Client Finance Officer and 
a Clerical Assistant (telephone number 01928 704436), who are 
managed by The Health & Community Directorate and have close 
links with other local user groups and service providers. 
 
What Direct Payments can be used for 
Direct Payments can be used to buy relevant services/equipment to 
meet needs identified as part of a person's care plan and may be 
used in the following ways: 

• Employing a Personal Assistant – the person arranges services 
in a way that suits them.  If a person employs personal assistants 
directly, whether as a sole or secondary employer, they must 
make adequate arrangements to fulfil their consequent 
responsibilities as an employer. 

• Buying services from an agency. 

• For short-term care (respite) in residential care which does not 
exceed a four week period in any 12 months (see below). 

• Purchasing equipment that would otherwise have been provided 
by Social Services.  (A policy and procedure for a pilot scheme 
for Direct Payments and Equipment is in place). 

• To fund a carers break. 
Any service purchased must be as cost effective or efficient as the 
Local Authority could arrange or buy. 
 
What Direct Payments cannot be used for 

• To relieve the Directorate of its statutory responsibilities towards 
a service user who is perceived as troublesome or difficult 

• To purchase local authority services. 

• For permanent residential care for adults.  Direct Payments may 
be used to purchase short-term care (respite) in residential care.  
This is calculated as follows: 
“Where two periods of residential care are less than 4 weeks 
apart, they should be added together to make a cumulative total 
which should not exceed four weeks. If the two periods are more 

important implications for the 

way that local councils undertake 

assessment and care planning 

discussions with individuals and 

for local councils' own 

commissioning procedures and 

planning. 

Department of Health Direct 

Payments Guidance 2003 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

When setting up a direct 

payments scheme, local councils 

are encouraged to actively 

consider how to include people 

with different kinds of 

impairment, people from different 

ethnic backgrounds and people of 

different ages.  When considering 

whether a person's need for a 

service can be met by means of a 

direct payment, local councils 

should consider the provision of 

direct payments for both intensive 

packages and lower level services, 

long and short term provision and 

they are also encouraged to think 

about how direct payments can be 

assimilated into preventive and 

rehabilitative strategies. 

"Department of Health Direct 

Payments Guidance 2003" 

 

 

 

 

What Direct Payments cannot 

be used for 

 

"Unless a council is satisfied that 

it is necessary to meet 

satisfactorily a person's needs, a 

council may not allow people to 

use direct payments to secure 

services from a spouse, from a 

partner or from a close relative (or 

their spouse or partner) who live 

in the same household as the 

direct payment recipient." 

The restrictions given are not 

intended to prevent people using 

their direct payments to employ a 

live-in personal assistant. 

The restriction applies where the 

relationship between the two 

Page 30



PROCEDURE CONTINUED 

  

 4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

than 4 weeks apart they are not added together.” Department of 
Health Direct Payments Guidance 2003. 

• For residential accommodation for a disabled child or disabled 
young person for any single period in excess of four weeks and 
for more than 120 days in any period of 12 months. 

• Personal assistance cannot be purchased from a partner or 
close relative living in the same household as the Direct 
Payments recipient other than in exceptional circumstances, 
which must be agreed by the Council in writing. 

 
Who can qualify for a Direct Payment 
To be eligible for a Direct Payment a person user must:- 

• Be ordinarily resident in the Borough of Halton 

• Be assessed as eligible to receive services (This includes carer 
services). 

• Agree to receive Direct Payments instead of services (for 
children under 16 consent must be obtained from a person with 
parental responsibility, usually a parent). 

• Be able to manage Direct Payments with or without support 

• Satisfy the Council that financial controls will be adhered to. 

• Councils now have the same duty to offer direct payments to 
eligible people who are subject to mental health or criminal 
justice legislation as they do to anyone else in all but the 
following cases: 

 
People who do not qualify for a Direct Payment  
Direct Payments may not be made in respect of certain people who 
have been placed under certain conditions or requirements by the 
courts in relation to drug and/or alcohol dependencies, as listed 
below:- 

• Offenders on a community order, or serving a suspended prison 
sentence, under the Criminal Justice Act 2003, which includes a 
requirement to accept treatment for drug or alcohol dependency 

• An offender on a community rehabilitation order or a community 
punishment and rehabilitation order under the Powers of Criminal 
Courts (Sentencing) Act 2000, which includes a requirement to 
accept treatment for drug or alcohol dependency. 

• Offenders released from prison on licence subject to an 
additional requirement to undergo treatment for a mental health 
condition or for drug or alcohol dependency; and 

 
Direct Payment Rates 
 
Where a service user chooses to employ: 

• An agency, a standard rate of £10.70 per hour (reduced pro 
rata for part hours e.g. ¾ hour £8.03, ½ hour £5.35, ¼ hour 
£2.68) will be paid based on the average agency hourly rate 
across Runcorn and Widnes.  

• A personal assistant (PA), a standard a rate of £9.35 per hour 
will be paid. 

people is primarily personal rather 

than contractual." 

Department of Health Direct 

Payments Guidance 2003." 

 
 
The final decision 
 

Whether a direct payment is 

appropriate or not, the Client 

Finance Manager must take into 

consideration whether the person 

will be able to cope with the 

responsibilities. 

 

Advice on making decisions 

about the ability to manage 

 

 
"The council should ensure it 

takes into account all relevant 

factors before making a decision 

not to make a direct payment: 

 

The person's understanding of 

direct payments, including the 

actions required on their part: 

Whether the person understands 

the implications of taking or not 

taking on direct payments 

What help is available to the 

person 

The nature of the services the 

person is assessed as needing: 

What arrangements the person 

would make to obtain services." 

Department of Health Direct 

Payments Guidance 2003 

 

 

Direct Payment Rates 
“In estimating the resonable cost 

of securing the provision of the 

service concerned, local councils 

should include associated costs 

that are necessarily incurred in 

securing provision,  without 

which the service could not be 

provided, or could not lawfully be 

provided.  The particular costs 

involved will vary depending 

upon the way in which the service 

is secured, but such costs might 

include recruitment costs, 

National Insurance, statutory 

holiday pay, sick pay, maternity 

pay, employers liability insurance, 

public liability insurance and 

VAT”. 

Department of Health Direct 

Payments Guidance 2003 

Page 31



PROCEDURE CONTINUED 

  

 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The complex rate of £11.36 per hour would only paid in exceptional 
circumstances, for both agency and personal assistants with the 
direct approval of the respective Operational Director, given the 
complexity of the service user’s needs having met the eligibility 
criteria (see paragraph. 1.14).   
 
This would introduce consistency across the board in relation to all 
community care packages arranged by both Care Managers and 
those purchased via a Direct Payment.  
 
Existing Service Users (to be implemented from 1st  October 2009) 
 
Respective Social Work teams will review existing Direct Payment 
packages using the criteria in para. 1.15.   All service users will be 
informed that the new assessed rates for both agency and personal 
assistants as outlined above will be implemented on 1st October 
2009.  
 
Direct Payment rates will be kept under review, for further 
amendments in line with changes to tendering arrangements for 
domiciliary care agencies.  
 
Eligibility Criteria 
FACS criteria for eligibility must be applied to those individuals who 
wish to receive a Direct Payment: 
 
Standard Support Criteria: £10.70 per hour Agency rate / £9.35 per 
hour PA rate 
 
The individual has an assessed need for: 
 
• Assistance to take medication. 
• Support with incontinence. 
• Physical assistance to use the toilet. 
• Assistance with moving and handling. 
• Assistance with washing/bathing. 
• Support to eat/ drink. 
• Specific support and assistance to stimulate development of 

communication and/or negotiation skills. 
• Support to access social activities  
NB: Supporting People funding and ILF will be used to support other 
social activities for the service user. 
And/or 

• Mental Health needs that meet critical/substantial FACS criteria 
or is demonstrably preventative and requires support. 

 
High Level Need/ Complex Support Criteria: £11.36 per hour 
(Agency & PA)   
 
In addition to some indicators for standard support: 

 

 

“There may be cases where an 

individual thinks that the total 

value of the direct payment 

should be greater than the council 

proposes, and/or that his or her 

contribution or the amount they 

are asked to pay by way of 

reimbursement should be less 

than the council proposes.  Where 

these cases cannot be resolved 

through discussion, local councils 

should advise the individual that 

he or she can pursue the matter 

through the council’s complaints 

procedure”. 

Department of Health Direct 

Payments Guidance 2003 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



PROCEDURE CONTINUED 

  

 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• The individual has a high level of challenging behaviours 
(requiring a Level 2 risk assessment and a risk management plan 
to manage safety) and the individual’s employed Carers require 
additional skills as certified by formal training.  Certificates will 
need to be produced. 

And /Or 

• The individual has complex needs, which are eligible for a Social 
Services/PCT joint funded package. 

 

• Mental Health needs that meet critical/substantial FACS criteria 
or is demonstrably preventative and requires support. 

 
High Level Need/ Complex Support Criteria: £11.36 per hour 
(Agency & PA)   
 
In addition to some indicators for standard support: 

• The individual has a high level of challenging behaviours 
(requiring a Level 2 risk assessment and a risk management plan 
to manage safety) and the individual’s employed Carers require 
additional skills as certified by formal training.  Certificates will 
need to be produced. 

And /Or 
The individual has complex needs, which are eligible for a Social 
Services/PCT joint funded package. 
 

• The individual has complex needs, which are eligible for a Social 
Services/PCT joint funded package. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 33



PROCEDURE CONTINUED 

  

 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2.0 
 
 
 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
PROCEDURE 
THE 4 STAGES 
 
The Directorate will undertake a four-stage process in order to make 
Direct Payments.  
Stage One:  Assessment 
Assessment is a crucial process and Direct Payments can only be 
offered to someone who has been assessed as eligible to receive 
services.   The Directorate's Social Workers and, where equipment 
is required, Occupational Therapists will work with the person to 
assess what their needs are. There will need to be a Best Interests 
Assessment in all cases where the person is deemed to lack the 
capacity to consent to the requirements of a direct payment. 
Stage Two:  Implementation 
At stage two the person has received an assessment and expressed 
an interest in receiving a Direct Payment.  It is the responsibility of 
the Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officers to tell them 
about the details of managing a Direct Payment and to set up the 
Direct Payment for them, (or the suitable person,  who will be 
managing the Direct Payment on behalf of the person who lacks 
capacity). 
 
 
Stage Three:  Monitoring 
At this stage the person is receiving a Direct Payment.  It is the 
responsibility of the Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officers 
to monitor how the Direct Payment is being used.  The Direct 
Payments/Individualised Budget Officer will provide support to the 
person for up to six weeks or until they are able to manage the 
monitoring process independently. 
 
Stage Four:  Reviewing 
Reviews take place to ensure that the Direct Payment is being 
managed satisfactorily.  Adults in receipt of Direct Payments review 
their needs at least annually with the Social Worker and/or 
Occupational Therapist and/or Client Finance Manager/Direct 
Payment/Individualised Budget Officer.  Children are reviewed at 
least every six months. See (Appendix 9).   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Practice 
Assessment 

Existing policy and practice 

guidance on assessment should be 

followed whether or not the 

person being assessed is likely to 

receive service provided by the 

local council or direct payments. 

Department of Health Direct 

Payments Guidance 2003 

 

Implementation 

Councils should give the person 

information and support as early 

in the process as possible about 

what receiving direct payments 

will involve.  In order to make an 

informed decision, people need to 

understand what is involved in 

managing direct payments. 

Department of Health Direct 

Payments Guidance 2003 
 
 
 
 
 
Monitoring 

Monitoring arrangements should 

be consistent both with the 

requirement for the council to be 

satisfied that the person's needs 

for the service can and will be met 

and with the aim of promoting 

and increasing choice and 

independence. 

Department of Health Direct 

Payments Guidance 2003 
Reviewing 

Councils should follow existing 

guidance on carrying out reviews.  

The fact that the council is 

making direct payments rather an 

arranging services itself does not 

affect its responsibility to review 

an individual's care package at 

regular intervals. 

Department of Health Direct 

Payments Guidance 2003 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



PROCEDURE CONTINUED 

  

 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 

3.0 
 

3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
STAGE ONE:  ASSESSMENT 
 
SOCIAL WORKER PROCEDURES 
 
Direct Payments can only be offered to someone who has been 
assessed as eligible to receive services.  There is no difference in 
the assessment process, which must include an assessment of 
whether Direct Payments are appropriate and of whether the person 
is able to manage them.  The procedure to be followed is detailed 
below: 
 

1. Undertake an assessment / review.  All eligible individuals 
should be offered the option of Direct Payments.  There is a 
leaflet (available from the Client Finance Team) that the 
Social Worker should give to the person.  

 
2. If the person is interested in receiving Direct Payments the 

Social Worker will need to determine their willingness to 
receive a payment, ability to state preferences and make 
choices, capacity to manage the Direct Payment and 
competence to take legal responsibility for arranging their 
own care services.  (Appendix 1) provides the definition of 
willing, able, capable and competent and of capacity under 
the Mental Health Act 2005. 

 
3. The Social Worker will need to ask the person’s permission to 

share a copy of their assessment, care plan and Independent 
Living Team report (if appropriate), with the Client Finance 
Team. 

 
4. Following the assessment and funding approval, the Social 

Worker will complete the Request for Direct Payment Form  
see (Appendix 14) and send to the Client Finance Team with 
all necessary documentation for set up.   The Client Finance 
Team will arrange to visit the person within 3 weeks.  The 
Direct Payment/Individualised Budget Officer will log the 
request onto the Direct Payments database.   The Social 
Worker may request a joint visit. 

 
5. On the visit it is important that the following is carried out: 

 

• The Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officer will use a 
Check List (Appendix 2) to ensure the person has received all 
relevant information to make an informed decision as to whether 
to continue or not.   

 

 

 

 

Assessment 
“There is no difference in the 

assessment of a person's need for 

services although under the 

Regulations a local council must 

also be satisfied that the person's 

need for services can be met by 

means of a direct payment.  It is 

important that the needs-led focus 

of the assessment is retained. 

In order to ensure that the person's 

assessed need for the relevant 

service can be met by means of a 

direct payment, each local council 

should consider the person's needs 

and also discuss with anyone to 

who it proposes to offer direct 

payments how he or she intends 

to secure the services.  Councils 

will want to be satisfied that the 

person's assessed needs can and 

will be met and that the money is 

being spent appropriately in 

securing services to meet those 

needs." 

Department of Health Direct 

Payments Guidance 2003 

Carer assessment 

The Department of Health policy 

and practice guidance and the 

Carers (Recognition and Services) 

Act 1995 emphasise the 

importance of considering carers’ 

needs when completing a 

community care assessment.  A 

carer is someone who has a 

personal or family relationship 

with the disabled person, not 

someone who is being paid to 

provide care or support to the 

disabled person using the Direct 

Payment. 

If as a result of a carers’ 

assessment the carer has needs for 

personal assistance in his or her 

own right then these needs may 

be met either through the 

provision of a service or a Direct 

Payment. 

Mixed packages of care 

It may be appropriate to offer a 

mixed package of direct payments 

and council arranged services.  

This may be particularly useful 

for people used to receiving direct 

services, such as older people, 

And who may need to increase 

Page 35



PROCEDURE CONTINUED 

  

 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

• A copy of "Personal Assistants - A Guide to Getting Started" will 
be given to the person if they intend to employ their own 
Personal Assistants. This guide will be used to help the person 
understand what is involved in managing Direct Payments and 
becoming an Employer. 

 

• At the end of the implementation stage when the person has 
signed a contract and statement letter, the Direct 
Payments/Individualised Budget Officer will set up the Direct 
Payment and the Social Worker will be informed.  All 
documentation will be sent to the Social Worker’s Team Support 
Officer to record information onto CareFirst.   

 

• The Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officer will send a 
copy of the Direct Payment contract and Care plan to the person 
to keep for their own records. 

 
 
OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY PROCEDURES 
 
As part of the assessment the need for Occupational Therapy input 
may be identified.  In this instance the Social Worker usually refers 
the person to the Independent Living Team for an Occupational 
Therapy Assessment. 
 
Equipment Assessments: 
 
Equipment will be supplied with relevant information and/or 
literature.  The person receiving Direct Payments should ensure all 
personal assistants (employed by them) are competent to use the 
equipment correctly.  The person should also ensure that any new 
employees are competent to use the issued equipment. 
 
ILT Hoist Assessments: 
 
1. Following a referral from the Social Worker the Occupational 

Therapist will carry out a hoist assessment, and recommend the 
appropriate equipment where necessary (as per standard hoist 
procedures).   

  
2. When the hoist assessment is completed the Social Worker and 

the Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officer will be 
informed of the outcome so it can be included in the care plan. 

 
3. Equipment will be supplied with relevant information and/or 

literature.  The person receiving Direct Payments should ensure 
that any personal assistant (employed by them) has the relevant 
skills in order to use any moving & handling equipment.  This 
includes ensuring that any new employees are competent to use 
the issued equipment. 

their confidence. 

Department of Health Direct 

Payments Guidance 2003 

 

 

 

 

 

Independent Living 

“Independent living is the concept 

of empowering disabled people to 

control their own lives as far as 

possible and to have the freedom 

to participate fully in the 

community.  It is not the name of 

a particular service or provision 

but should be the objective of 

services and provision. 

 

Support for independent living 

includes personal assistance, 

information, housing, education, 

access to public goods and 

services, employment and training 

and access to the environment and 

the political arena.” 

Social Services Inspectorate 

“New Directions for Independent 

Living.” 

 

Direct Payments 

“Direct Payment schemes for 

people aged over 65, became 

available on 1
st
 February 2000, 

reinforcing the belief that people 

who have made their own choices 

throughout their lives should have 

the right to decide how people 

arrange their own social care.  

Direct Payments for older people 

will enable those who take this 

option to live for longer in their 

own homes in the community, in 

touch with family and friends.  

Younger people with physical 

disabilities have often chosen to 

use their Direct Payment to 

employ a personal assistant or 

occasional support, depending on 

the level of need.” 

Social Services Inspectorate 

“Modern Social Services” 

 

Determination of payment 

levels 

‘The guiding principle in 

determining the level of a Direct 

Payment should be to set it at a 

level which reflects as closely and 

fairly as possible the actual cost at 

which individual service users can 

Page 36



PROCEDURE CONTINUED 

  

 10

 
 
 
 
 
 

4.0 
 

4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.2 
 
 
 

4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.4 
 
 
 
 
 

4.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The provision of the equipment will be subject to standard review 
procedure. The outcome of these reviews will be forwarded to the 
Social Worker and Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officer. 
 
 
STAGE TWO:  IMPLEMENTATION 
 
In order to make an informed decision people will need to 
understand what is involved in managing Direct Payments and be 
helped through the process.  The Direct Payments/Individualised 
Budget Officer is responsible for this stage, but before this process 
begins, they needs to know the following:- 
 
 
Direct Payment Rates 
Contact Direct Payments Section, Client Finance Team for current 
rates.  
 
Start-up costs 
This is a one-off payment to cover start-up costs up to a maximum of 
£259.  For example, this payment could be used for setting up 
interviews, purchasing insurance, buying protective clothing for 
personal assistants and placing adverts.  An amount is agreed 
between the Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officer and 
person up to the maximum of £259.  At this stage the Direct 
Payments/Individualised Budget Officer will inform the Team 
Practice Manager of the agreed amount.  The set up costs are paid 
directly into the recipient’s bank account. 
 
The amount paid depends on individual circumstances, e.g. a 
person wishing to employ personal assistants for their full care 
needs may be entitled to the full amount of £259.  A person who will 
receive Direct Payments to purchase support from an agency may 
only be entitled to a proportion of the full amount.   
 
From 1st April 2009 start up costs will incorporate an allowance for 
payroll service costs incurred when a service user employs a 
Personal Assistant.  By including payroll costs, in start up costs if 
incurred and if required annually thereafter, potential difficulties and 
debt in relation to tax and national insurance payments by the 
individual in receipt of the Direct Payment could be avoided. 
 
Contingency 
A contingency sum (for use in emergencies) is paid with the first 
regular Direct Payment and is equivalent to 2 weeks Direct 
Payment.  When a sum of money is used from the contingency the 
person will need to complete a “Request for Re-imbursement” form 
see (Appendix 16) form giving reasons and proof of expenditure. 
People should give notice to their Social Worker, wherever possible, 
prior to using any amount from this fund.  If the expenditure is 

purchase the services which they 

are assessed to need.  Equally 

there should be equity between 

those users who participate in 

such a scheme, and those who are 

unable or prefer not to participate. 

Payments to service users under 

this scheme should, therefore, be 

made on the basis that the user is 

given sufficient, but no more than 

sufficient, funds to purchase the 

same quantity and same quality of 

care which would be arranged for 

a service user of the same Local 

Authority with the same assessed 

needs who remains outside the 

Direct Payments scheme.’ 

CIPFA ‘Accounting and Financial 

Management Guidelines.’ 

 

Start up costs 

These costs are refundable to the 

authority if the service user 

decides not to proceed with the 

Direct Payment scheme, although 

there may be exceptional 

circumstances when it is deemed 

unreasonable to request the full 

amount to be returned. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Contingency fund approval 

Contingency fund needs to be 

approved by the relevant Practice 

Manager and Client Finance 

Manager. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37



PROCEDURE CONTINUED 

  

 11

 
 
 
 
 
 

4.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.11 
 

approved, then the contingency is ‘topped up’.  If the expenditure is 
not approved then the person should pay back the contingency from 
private funds. 
 
 
 
Separate bank account 
The Local Authority requires evidence that the monies made 
available are being used to meet the identified and agreed needs as 
determined by the assessment.  It is therefore necessary that 
recipients of Direct Payments to purchase care services have a 
separate and exclusive bank account to manage their Direct 
Payments and keep it separate from their personal finances.  A bank 
details form (Appendix 4) will be given to the person to complete and 
return to the Direct Payments Team as soon as the account has 
been opened so that payment arrangements can be made. 
 
Insurance 
Extra insurance is incurred by the introduction of the Direct Payment 
scheme, i.e. employer’s liability and public liability. The cost of this 
will be met by the authority within the start-up costs, upon proof of 
payment.  The contingency fund can be used to pay insurance fees 
and a receipt must be sent to the Local Authority 
along with a "Request for Reimbursement of Contingency" form, to 
ensure repayment.  Alternatively the insurance payment can be 
made with the first payment made to the person. 
 
Direct Payments and Trusts 
A Trust may administer the Direct Payment for the person, but that 
person must retain responsibility for receiving the payment and 
determining how it is to be used.  The important principle, which 
must be addressed before making a Direct Payment, is that the 
Local Authority should satisfy itself that the relationship between the 
person and the Trust/agent/power of attorney, will honour the spirit 
of independent living, before a Direct Payment is agreed. 
 
Fairer Charging Policy 
Halton Borough Council’s Fairer Charging Policy takes account of a 
person’s ability to pay for services they receive.  People receiving a 
service are asked to give details of income and benefits that they 
receive, details of any savings and investments that they have and 
details of any disability spending that they have. Any financial 
contribution the person needs to make towards the cost of their care 
will be taken out before the Direct Payment is paid into their bank 
account unless a suitable person or managed account is the 
preferred authorised method of the person receiving a direct 
payment, then the person will be invoiced in the normal way for their 
contribution towards the support package. 
 
How the money can be spent 
When signing the Direct Payment contract, the service user will be 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Charging Policy 
Local Councils can require you to 

make a financial contribution to 

the cost of your care, just as they 

can already charge you for other 

services.  You should not be 

charged more than it is reasonably 

practicible for you to pay.  If you 

are a disabaled perosn and are 

working or intending to enter 

work, you will not be charged 

against your earned income.  Ask 

your local council about its 

charging policy and how it applies 

to people who receive direct 

payments. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 38



PROCEDURE CONTINUED 

  

 12

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

4.15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

taking responsibility for arranging their services, and spending the 
cash payment in the way that is shown in the contract.  It is essential 
that the contract is clear that people using Direct Payments have 
flexibility about how the money is spent. 
 
 
 
Buying services from an agency 
Any services purchased by the person must be as cost effective or 
efficient as the Local Authority could arrange or buy.  In discussions 
with the person receiving the Direct Payment it is important that the 
Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officer explains that the 
Local Authority is not liable to pay VAT, and it is not possible for the 
Local Authority to make extra provision to cover the cost of VAT. 
 
Employing a personal assistant 
Many people will chose to employ a personal assistant.  In this case 
the person becomes an employer and must make adequate 
arrangements to fulfil their consequent responsibilities.  Halton has 
seen a growth in the number of personal assistants employed by 
those in receipt of a Direct Payment since the scheme began. 
 
Arrangements in emergencies 
 
It is essential that each person receiving a Direct Payment has 
made arrangements to cover potential emergencies, for example if a 
personal assistant is sick.  If these arrangements break down and it 
is not possible for the person to have their needs met, then 
ultimately the Local Authority is responsible for arranging services 
for them.   This should be done via contacting the person's Social 
Worker or the Emergency Duty Team. 
 
The Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officer is responsible for 
implementing the Direct Payment.  The procedure is detailed below 
(taking into account the conditions outlined above): 
 
1. Once the person has confirmed they want to use Direct 

Payments, the Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officer will 
arrange to visit them. 

 
2. The Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officer will contact 

Financial Services for details of how much the person has been 
assessed to pay. 

 
3. The Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officer will agree 

start up costs with the person if required. 
 
4. The Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officer will prepare to 

send the person 1 contract (Appendix 5), 2 copies of the 
Statement Letter (Appendix 3) an Offer Letter (Appendix 6) and a 
Bank Details Form (Appendix 4).  The person accepts the offer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Support groups 

When discussing direct payments 

with people, local councils will 

wish, wherever possible, of offer 

the option for them to be put in 

touch with a support group or 

local centre for independent 

living, or a peer support group of 

people who already manage direct 

payments. 

Department of Health Direct 

Payments Guidance 2003. 

 
Rates of pay for personal 

assistants 
The service user will negotiate the 

rate of pay with their own 

personal assistant. 

 

 

 

 

 

Emergency contact numbers 

Emergency Duty Team – 01606 

76611. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Statement of Direct Payment 

Page 39



PROCEDURE CONTINUED 

  

 13

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

by:- 

• setting up a bank account 

• completing the ‘Bank Details’ form and returning it to the 
Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officer. 

• Signing both statements, returning 1 to the Direct 
Payments/Individualised Budget Officer and keeping 1 for 
themselves. 

• Completing the Contract, returning it to the Direct 
Payments/Individualised Budgets Officer. 

 
5. The person will then start to look for a suitable provider to meet 

their assessed needs.  This provider can be a personal assistant, 
or an agency.  If the person chooses to employ a personal 
assistant then the Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officer, 
will if required, assist them with this process.  It they choose to 
use an Agency, a Provider contact List will be given to the 
individual with telephone numbers to contact the provider 
directly.  

 
6. On receipt of the signed contract, statement letter and bank 

details form, the Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officer 
will arrange for start up costs to be paid into the person's bank 
account. 

 
7. The Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officer will arrange to 

forward the Bank Details to Halton Purchasing Department to 
request a Supplier Code to enable payments to commence. 

 
8. Halton Purchasing Department will inform the Direct Payments 

Team of the Supplier Code to commence payments. 
 
9. Once the person has found a suitable provider the Direct 

Payments/Individualised Budget Officer will prepare to make 
payments to the individual.  

 
10. A copy of the care plan and Independent Living Team report, if 

appropriate, also forms part of the contract and is copied only to 
the service user. 

 
8. The Client Finance Officer will set up a Service User file to record 

all documents for the Direct Payment Team. 
 
9. To begin payments the Direct Payments/Individualised Budget 

Officer will raise the first 4 weekly payment, together with the 2 
weeks contingency payment. The Client Finance Officer will raise 
a payment every four weeks and will record the details on the 
financial database. The Direct Payments/Individualised Budget 
Officer will email Financial Services for them to make 
arrangements to stop invoicing the service user for their financial 
contribution. 

 

In order for this statement to be 

produced the Social Worker will 

need to submit a financial 

assessment.  If this has happened 

the statement can be produced 

within 5 days of receipt of a copy 

of care plan and panel application. 

 
Contract with service user 

‘It is important that the service 

user fully agrees to managing 

Direct Payments before the first 

payment is made.  This will allow 

the user not only to recruit staff or 

service providers, but also give 

them time to set up recording and 

payment systems themselves.’ 

CIPFA ‘Accounting and 
Financial Management 
Guidelines.’ 
 
If the service user is assessed as 

eligible for a Direct Payment then 

an agreement will be reached 

about the amount of money each 

recipient will receive on a weekly 

basis.  The calculation of the 

weekly cost of a Direct Payment 

package will be the result of an 

agreement of the number of hours 

required at a specific time of the 

day, to meet the care needs 

identified in the care assessment.  

If the service users need change 

then a new contract will be drawn 

up. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Criminal Records Bureau 

checks of Personal Assistants 

It is the responsibility of the 

Client Finance Manager to raise 

service user awareness about the 

importance of ensuring CRB 

checks are carried out on personal 

assistant.   

The service user will be 

encouraged to ask personal 

assistants to get a CRB check 

carried out. If the PA is likely to 

have access to children then the 

PA must be checked by the CRB 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



PROCEDURE CONTINUED 

  

 14

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.0 
 

5.1 
 
 
 

5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.4 
 

10. The Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officer will supply the 
person with all the necessary records and advice for keeping 
quarterly financial records and records of support received and 
tell them about their responsibilities to retain invoices/receipts 
and bank statements.  A Stationery file will be provided to 
individuals if required to keep their paperwork in order which can 
be obtained from the Direct Payments Team. 

 
12. At this stage the person will be expected to start making their 

contributions towards the cost of their support to coincide with 
the first Direct Payment. 

 
13. During the initial 6-week period the Direct Payment/Individualised 

Budget Officer will arrange to meet the person on a frequency 
appropriate to their needs. 

 
STAGE THREE:  MONITORING 
 
At this stage the person is receiving Direct Payments and these 
need to be monitored.  All financial records and returns can be 
subject to auditing at any time. (see Appendix 8) 
 
What if the money is not spent? 
There may be a number of reasons why a surplus has accrued in 
the bank account, for example, there may be outstanding tax or 
national insurance not yet due or paid.   Alternatively, the person 
may be ‘saving care’ to cover extra costs that may be incurred when 
they take personal assistant with them to a special event, although 
this need must be agreed with their Social Worker.   Also the 
contingency money will be kept in the bank account as a reserve. 
Any credit balance should be explained to the satisfaction of the 
Client Finance Manager.   If there is a credit balance in the account 
without a satisfactory reason, the Local Authority will reduce the 
person's next payment. 
 
What if there is an overspend? 
If there is a problem with a person overspending the Direct 
Payment, then advice and support will be offered and the overspend 
corrected.  If the problem persists, then the Client Finance Manager 
may need to reassess the ability of the person to manage the 
scheme or a reassessment of need under the Community Care Act 
may need to be undertaken by a Social Worker.  If a person spends 
more money than is allowed by the Direct Payment package, then 
they are liable for this from their private funds.  If services paid for 
have not been received, it is the responsibility of the person to seek 
a refund from the service provider.  Equally the service provider 
should pursue the recovery of debts from the person, if services 
have been received and not paid for. 
 
Repayment 
The Local Authority can seek repayment if the monies made 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Responsibility for quarterly 

audit returns 

It is the responsibility of the 

Direct Payments/Individualised 

Budget Officer to check audit 

returns and provide reconciliation.  

The group accountant in financial 

services will provide advice and 

guidance where necessary. 
 
 
 
 
Checks when monitoring Direct 

Payment 

• Have all necessary records 

been received? 

• Are they fully completed and 

total correct? 

• Does the balance on the 

financial record agree with 

the bank balance – bank 

reconciliation? 

• Does the income agree with 

the office payment record? 

• Are payments supported by 

invoices/wage records and in 

accordance with identified 

needs? 

• Is the level of Direct 

Payments reasonable, i.e. no 

surplus accruing 
 
The account should be in credit 

but surplus should be represented 

by amounts owing by service user 

(wages not yet paid) / contingency 

funds / payments outstanding to 

Inland Revenue. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41



PROCEDURE CONTINUED 

  

 15

 
 
 
 
 
 

5.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.7 
 
 
 
 
 

5.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.9 
 
 
 
 

5.10 
 
 

available have not been used to purchase services identified in the 
care plan and contract, or were used to purchase services identified 
as being excluded.   It is essential that honest mistakes are seen as 
such, and repayments should only be sought where monies have 
been spent inappropriately or not spent at all. 
 
Recovery of Direct Payment 
It may be necessary to recover unspent Direct Payments if a service 
user dies.  Contractual responsibilities must be met before 
determining the amount of Direct Payment to be recovered.  See 
(Appendix 5) Direct Payment Contract "Responsibilities of Direct 
Payment Recipient" (Item 14). 
 
Self Certification 
Small Packages of Care – New Service Users 
If the Direct Payment package is on average 15 hours per month or 
less, regular full financial inspections may not be necessary.  These 
packages could be dealt with under an annual “self certification” 
scheme. See (Appendix 13). 
Established Direct Payment Service Users – those service users 
who are able to demonstrate they have maintained records as 
required by the scheme and have had regular monitoring checks, 
may also be given the option of “self certifying” on an annual basis.  
This option will be a joint decision between the Direct Payments 
monitoring service and the service user, and an assessment of risk 
will take place. 
 
Equipment 
The person receiving Direct Payments is responsible for considering 
manual handling risks.  The Direct Payments/Individualised Budget 
Officer will feed back any concerns about use of equipment to the 
Independent Living Team. 
 
Each person receiving Direct Payments must provide the Local 
Authority with audit returns on at least an annual basis, indicating 
how their Direct Payment has been spent.  The aim of this return is 
to ensure that the person is receiving enough money to pay for 
services whilst at the same time ensuring the monies are being 
spent as agreed.  Once it has been established that the person is 
managing their Direct Payment satisfactorily, either alone or with 
help, the frequency of financial monitoring may need to be adjusted 
after discussion with the person. 
 
During the first 6 weeks the Direct Payments/Individualised Budget 
Officer will monitor that the needs identified on the care plan are 
being met and the Direct Payment is being managed effectively. 
Detailed below is a list of the records that need to be kept: 
 
Records to be kept by Client Finance Team 

- Direct Payment record of audit checklist ( Appendix 7) 
- Initial offer letter 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary of records for 

employing personal assistant 

• Quarterly return 

• PAYE/NI records 

Page 42



PROCEDURE CONTINUED 

  

 16

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.12 
 
 
 
 

5.13 
 
 
 
 

5.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Statement letter of Direct Payment/assessed charge 
- Copy of care plan and Independent Living Team report (if 

appropriate) 
- Contract 
- Start up list for Direct payment (Appendix 10) 
- Diary notes (Appendix 11) 
- Direct Payment database 
- Self certification form (if appropriate) 
- Any other relevant information to the account 

 
Records to be kept by service user 
If person employs a personal assistant: 

- Copies of all records, i.e. 
- Quarterly returns 
- Time sheets 
- Income and expenditure record (see Appendix 15) 
- Quarterly return to Inland Revenue 
- BACS advice slips 
- Cheque stubs 
- Bank statement 
- Service user contribution 
- Sickness records 
- Holiday records 
- Contingency 
- Saving care 
- Amendment to bank details 
- Self certification form (if appropriate) 

If person purchases services from an agency: 
- Quarterly return to show hours of service purchased 

during the period, the cheque number and payee and the 
amount paid out 

All invoices and receipts for the quarter 
 
From the onset of Direct Payments, the Direct Payments Team will 
use the "Diary Notes"/Record of Audit Checklist sheet to log results 
of visits, any discrepancies and any enquiries or issues relating to 
their Direct Payment. 
 
A database is kept to record statistical records relating to Direct 
Payments.  This is completed by the Direct Payment/Individualised 
Budget Officer at referral; start of the Direct Payment, six-week 
review and at each audit. 
 
The Clerical Assistant will check the payments made each week to 
all Direct Payment recipients are correct by checking against the 
Direct Payment reconciliation report from Management Accounts to 
ensure that any errors/discrepancies are identified and corrected. 
 
 
 
 

• Evidence if assistant is self 

employed 

• All receipts for expenditure 

from Direct Payment fund 

• Record of assistants 

holiday/sickness 
 
Summary of records for buying 

from an agency 

• Budget statement 

• Invoices 

• All receipts 

 

Summary of records for all 

Direct Payment recipients 

• BACS advice slips 

• Bank statements 

• Cheque books 

• Paying in books 

• Contingency records 

• Time sheets 

 
Tax records 

All tax records must be kept for 6 

years for Inland Revenue 

purposes. 

 
The authority is not obliged to 

fund the actual cost associated 

with the users preferred method of 

securing services if the service 

can be secured more cheaply in 

another way. 

 

Tax Record 

It must be noted that all tax 

records must be kept for six years 

for Inland Revenue purposes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43



PROCEDURE CONTINUED 

  

 17

 
 
 
 
 
 

6.0 
 

6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.4 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
STAGE FOUR:  REVIEWING 
 

Once a person has been set up to receive Direct Payments, the 
Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officer will offer support for 
up to six weeks or until the person is able to manage the monitoring 
process independently.  At six weeks the Client Finance 
Manager/Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officer will co-
ordinate a joint review with the Social Worker, Occupational 
Therapist (if appropriate).  The review will cover the following areas: 

• Checking and reviewing all financial records to ensure the 
person is maintaining all the records necessary for the monitoring 
of expenditure and services 

• Ensuring the Direct Payment is being used to meet the person's 
needs as outlined in the care plan and the Independent Living 
Team report (if appropriate) 

• Ensure the services have been received and the Direct Payment 
has been used cost effectively 

• Identifying and resolving any difficulties the person has in 
managing Direct Payments 

• Confirming there have been no changes in circumstances and 
the person is still eligible to receive Direct Payments 

• Checking that any equipment supplied by the Independent Living 
Team is being used correctly (where relevant). 

 
If the outcome of the review is satisfactory, support visits by the 
Direct Payment/Individualised Budget Officer will be offered.  If there 
are any concerns about how well the person is managing the 
scheme they will receive regular visits and support.  For Adults, the 
Social Worker will continue to review the person's care needs at 
least annually.  For children in need in the community, reviews of the 
child in need plan should take place at least every 6 months. 
 
What happens if a service user’s circumstances change? 
It is vitally important that if the circumstances of a person change, 
the Direct Payment/Individualised Budget Officer be notified 
immediately.  It is in everyone’s interest to ensure that events such 
as hospital admissions or long absences from home are properly 
recorded. 
 
What if difficulties arise? 
Direct Payments will not be withdrawn at the first sign of difficulty.  
The Department of Health guidance suggests that the following 
questions should be asked: 

• Has the person’s needs changed? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reviewing 

‘Councils should follow existing 

guidance on carrying out reviews.  

As with all services, the projected 

timing of the first review should 

be set at the outset.  The purpose 

of the review remains to establish 

whether the objectives set in the 

original care plan are being met.  

It should therefore cover whether 

the person's needs have changed, 

whether the use of direct 

payments is meting assessed 

needs and how he or she is 

managing direct payments." 

Department of Health Direct 

Payments Guidance 2003 

 

Frequency of Monitoring 

The frequency of monitoring will 

be dictated by the length of time 

the person has managed a direct 

payment either alone or with help 

and their particular circumstances.  

Once a council is satisfied a 

person is managing the direct 

payments satisfactorily, reviews 

should be at the same intervals as 

for other people receiving 

services. 

 

Children identified as needing 

services under section 17 of the 

1989 Act 

Reviews may be necessary more 

often so that the council remains 

satisfied that the direct payment 

promotes and safeguards the 

welfare of the child.  The 

Framework for the Assessment of 

Children in Need and their 

Families reminds councils that it 

is good practice to review plans 

for children in need in the 

community at least every 6 

months. 

Department of Health Direct 

Payments Guidance 2003. 

 

 

 

"Whilst the Local Authority is 

relieved of its responsibilities to 

Page 44



PROCEDURE CONTINUED 

  

 18

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.7 
 
 
 
 
 

6.8 
 

• Is the amount of money provided sufficient to enable the person 
to secure the relevant services?  

• Is the person able to manage Direct Payments or can they do so 
with assistance? 

• Does the person wish to continue receiving Direct Payments? 

• Has all the money been spent towards achieving the outcomes 
identified in the care plan? 

• Have services for which the person has paid been received? 

• Has the money been spent wisely? 
 
When to discontinue Direct Payments 
The person to whom Direct Payments are made may decide at any 
time that they no longer wish to continue to receive them.  The Local 
Authority may also discontinue Direct Payments temporarily or 
permanently as outlined in the Direct Payment Contract (Appendix 
5).  However before a decision is made, full and frank discussions 
must take place with everyone involved.  The Client Finance 
Manager may consider that it is more appropriate to recoup any 
overpayment as a result of such circumstances at the audit rather 
than disrupt the regular payment system.  In all circumstances 
where Direct Payments are discontinued whether temporarily or 
permanently, careful consideration should be made about any 
contractual responsibilities, i.e. terminating employment, redundancy 
etc.  These issues will need to be discussed by the person and the 
Client Finance Manager/Direct Payments/Individualised Budget 
Officer before the agreement is finalised. 
 
When signing the Direct Payment contract, the person takes 
responsibility for arranging their own personal assistance and 
spending the payment to meet their needs as outlined in the care 
plan.  It is essential that the Direct Payments/Individualised Budget 
Officer makes it clear to them what the money may or may not be 
spent on and how much flexibility the person has over the way the 
money is spent.  
Complaints 
The person receiving the Direct Payment may invoke the 
Directorate’s complaints procedure if they think that the procedures 
are unfair or have been unfairly applied to them.  Contractual issues 
between the person, their personal assistant or agency providing the 
service cannot be dealt with under the complaints procedure. 
 
Carers  
When a Carer is awarded a Carers Break Direct Payment, the Direct 
Payment  will be paid directly into his/hers existing bank account as 
the payment made to the Carer is in most cases a (One-off 
payment) to be spent over a 12 month period.  The procedures 
outlined in this document apply to Carers in the same way as a 
Service User but the Carer will receive a Direct Payment for Carers 
Contract to agree to and sign see (Appendix 12) 
 
The Carer will be required to keep all receipts in relation to the 

arrange services for recipients of 

direct payments, it still has an 

obligation to satisfy itself that the 

services purchased meet the needs 

of the service user, and that the 

care needs of the service user are 

reviewed at regular intervals.  

These duties should be performed 

by care staff from the Local 

Authority." 

CIPFA Accounting and Financial 

Management Guidelines 

 

 

 

Discontinuing Direct Payments 

The council should discuss with 

individuals as soon as possible it 

if is considering discontinuing 

direct payments to them.  They 

should be given an opportunity to 

demonstrate that they can 

continue to manage direct 

payments, albeit with greater 

support if appropriate…….. the 

council should not automatically 

assume when problems arise that 

the only solution is to discontinue 

or end direct payments. 

Department of Health Direct 

Payments Guidance 2003 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Carers Act 

Under the Carers (Recognition 

and Service) Act 1995 and the 

Caerers and Disabled Children’s 

Act 2000, all carers providing 

regular and substantion care have 

the right to request an assessment 

of their own needs. 

Page 45



PROCEDURE CONTINUED 

  

 19

spend of the Direct Payment awarded to them and produce the 
receipts to the council if requested to do so. 
 
It is the responsibility of the Clerical Officer/Client Finance Officer to 
process Carers Direct Payments following all above procedures.  

Page 46



 

 20

APPENDIX 1 

 

Definitions for use in determining whether a person is able to manage a Direct Payment 

Willing 

Is the person willing (with or without assistance) to receive a Direct Payment and all the responsibilities 

involved?  The person receiving a Direct Payment must understand (with or without assistance) all the 

conditions they will be required to meet.  These conditions include taking day to day control of their 

personal assistance, payment of bills, managing the bank account, preparation of audit returns and making 

arrangements for cover in emergencies. 

Able 

The person receiving the Direct Payment must have the ability to express (with or without assistance) a 

preference about the way in which they wish to have services provided.  This can be illustrated by looking 

at what the person does now and how much control they are able to exert upon their personal assistance. 

Capable to manage 

The Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officer and the Social Worker will need to agree that the 

service user understands the nature of the agreement they are entering into.  The Direct Payment contract 

is legally binding upon the Local Authority and the service user. It is essential, therefore, that the service 

user is either personally able to keep the necessary records, e.g. national insurance and tax, or with the 

assistance of the Direct Payments/Individualised Budget Officer or makes appropriate arrangements for 

their responsibilities in such areas to be completed on their behalf.  Such support in managing a Direct 

Payment will need to be identified before a Direct Payment contract can be made. 

Capacity 

A capacity assessment will be of a person’s capacity to make a specific decision                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

Mental Capacity Act 2005 

A significant factor influencing the assessment will be about specific decisions  

The Mental Capacity Act 2005 states that a person is unable to make a decision if he/she is unable: 

(a) To understand the information relevant to the decision; 

(b)  To retain that information; 

(c)  To use or weigh that information as part of the process of making the decision; or 

(d)  To communicate his decision (whether by talking, using sign language or any other means. 

 

It also states that:  

• A person is not to be regarded as unable to understand the information relevant to a decision if he is 

able to understand an explanation of it given to him in a way that is appropriate to his circumstances 

(using simple language, visual aids or any other means). 

• The fact that a person is able to retain the information relevant to a decision for a short period only 

does not prevent him from being regarded as able to make the decision. 

• The information relevant to a decision includes information about the reasonably foreseeable 

consequences of 

 - Deciding one way or another; or 

 - Failing to make the decision. 

Page 47



 

 21

APPENDIX 2 

CHECKLIST FOR SERVICE USER VISITS 
 

• What is Direct Payments – what it is – service user/trust/agent/power of attorney to manage-
honour spirit of independent living. Direct Payments is the same as having a care package arranged 
for you from Social Services,  but rather than the Social Worker arranging the agency for you – you 
decide who you want, and arrange the services yourself. 

• Opening A Bank Account: To receive a Direct Payment you must open a separate bank 
account (a normal current account with a chequebook) soley for the use of the Direct Payment.  This is 
so we can monitor what you are spending the Direct Payments on, without looking at your own 
personal bank account.  You will earn interest on your Direct Payment Account.  If you are asked to 
put an amount of money into the account to activate it, let us know and we will re-imburse you that 
amount with the first payment we make to you. 

• Charging policy: HBC charge for care services that we provide.  You will need to complete a 
Financial Assessment to determine if you need to contribute to the package of care.  The Fairer 
Charging policy can also be considered as extra spending which could reduce the amount you are 
assessed to contribute.  If you would like a Fairer Charging Assessment, Welfare Benefits Team will 
be able to help you with this.  If you are assessed to contribute to your package of care, this will be 
deducted from the amount you will receive on direct Payments and you will need to set up a Direct 
Debit to pay your client contribution into your Direct Payment Account.  If you currently receive a 
service and want to transfer onto Direct Payments and you receive a Bill from HBC for your 
contribution, you will stop receiving these bills and pay your contribution into your Direct Payment 
Account instead of receiving a bill. 

• Receiving Your Direct Payment: Your Direct Payment is paid 4 weekly in advance.  Once you 
have your Bank Account open and you notify us of the date you intend to start using an Agency/ Pa 
you can then contact us and we will arrange for the First Payment to be put into the Direct Payment 
Account.  We will pay you 4 weeks in advance, so that you have the money in your account ready for 
when you need to pay the Agency or PA.  The First Direct Payment includes 2 weeks emergency 
contingency money that you need to keep in the Direct Payment Account for emergencies.  You can 
tap into the contingency money in an emergency, but you must contact us to let us know what you 
have used it for so that we can confirm it is ok.  We will then put that amount back into the Direct 
Payment Account for you so that the contingency amount is always in. 

• Start up costs:  We can give you up to £259 start up costs as a one off payment.  This is 
usually for people who are going to be employing Personal Assistants.   This will cover the cost for the 
following: 
Public & Employers Liability Insurance - £66.00/£134.40.  This covers up to 5 Carers working 
in/outside the home while providing care for you.  The Direct Payments Team will provide you with an 
application form to complete, and then the Direct Payment user should send the completed form with a 
cheque for £76.65/£134.40 to the address on the application form.  This covers is for a 12-month 
period.  You will be notified by FISH Insurance when it is due for renewal. 
 
Criminal Record Bureau Disclosure Application – If you are employing Personal Assistants, it is a 
requirement that all Personal Assistants have a CRB check.  The cost of this is £36.00 and HBC will 
cover the cost of this.  Application Forms will be sent to you for your Personal Assistants to complete 
and take to Halton Direct Link for checking.  You will need to make out a cheque made payable to 
Halton Borough Council.  HBC will then send the completed form to the CRB and on completion, the 
Enhanced Disclosure Form will be returned to the Direct Payment User and a copy will also be sent to 
the Personal Assistant 
 
Recruitment Costs – Advertising costs can be paid from the £259 start up costs if necessary Protective 
Clothing – Aprons, Gloves can be purchased from the £259 start up costs. 

Page 48



 

 22

• Using Your Direct Payment:  By receiving Direct Payments, you have all the control and choice 
over who you decide to employ to help you.  You can use the DP to pay for services from an agency to 
provide the support you need or employ a support worker/personal assistant directly by becoming an 
employer in your own right.  If you use an agency – you will need to contact the agency you intend to 
use to see if they can accommodate your needs and to see how many hours you can get out of the 
Direct Payment.  The agency will invoice you for payment and you must make your payments by 
cheque so that we can monitor the account via your bank statements and invoices. 

• Personal Assistants – If you intend to employ somebody directly ( PA) you (the service user) 
becomes an employer and must adhere to Inland Revenue requirements.  See PA guide if required.  
Anyone employing a PA must contact the Inland Revenue to register as an Employer and keep 
records for the Inland Revenue as well as the Direct Payment Team.  All Wages, Tax & Insurance 
must be paid from the Direct Payment. 

• Direct Payment Hourly Rates:  Your Social Worker determines which hourly rate your Direct 
Payment will be based on.  The basic rate is £9.35, £10.70 (Agency) or Complex rate is £11.08.  (may 
vary depending on package) 

• Paperwork Requirements: Once the Direct Payment has been set up there will be some 
paperwork for you to sign and return.  These include : 
1 Offer Letter confirming that you have decided to use Direct Payments 
2 Statement Letters outlining how the Direct Payment has been calculated. 
1 Contract.  They all need signing by the Service User or Power of Attorney and then witnessed by 
somebody else and another name and address must be given in the event of anything happening to 
the Service User to administer the closure of the Direct Payment Account.  You must return 1 
Statement Letter signed and the Whole contract in order for the Direct Payment to start.  

• Contracts: Either party can terminate the Direct Payment by giving 4 weeks notice in writing. 

•  Auditing the Direct Payment Account:  After 6 weeks of being on the Direct Payment 
Scheme, the Client Finance Manager and Direct Payment Assistant will visit you to do a 6 week review 
usually with your Social Worker to make sure you are happy with everything, thereafter annually.    
After that the Direct Payments Assistant will arrange visits to undertake the Audit of the Direct 
Payment Account at a frequency decided by both parties.  You must keep records of all Payments we 
make to you and all payments you make to the agency/pa.  A sample of an income & expenditure 
sheet can be provided for you to use.  An easy way to record the information is to wait until you receive 
your Monthly Bank Statement and copy the information from the statement onto the Income & 
Expenditure Sheet.  If there is a build up of funds accumulating in the account, and there is no reason, 
ie. Outstanding invoices, tax returns, planned trips.  The Direct Payment Assistant may advise you that 
the next payment will be stopped.  This is to ensure the account does not exceed 6-8 weeks Direct 
Payment.  The payment will be recorded on a database as stopped but you can request this money to 
be transferred back into the Direct Payment account if you find the account is running low on funds.  

• Benefits: Direct Payment does not affect Social Security benefits or taxable income and the 
Direct Payment is not taxable. 

• Change of Circumstances: Any changes in circumstances must be reported as soon as 
possible to DP team or Social Worker. 

• Re-assessment: If you feel you need extra hours then you must be referred back to the Social 
Work Team for a re-assessment.  Call Customer services 01928 704406 to be referred. 

• Complaints Procedure: HBC have a complaints procedure.  If you want to make a compliment, 
Suggestion or Complaint, contact our Customer Service Advisors on 01928 704406 or write to: 
Complaints, Freepost (CS/3), Social Care Housing & Health Directorate, HBC, Grosvenor House, 
Runcorn, Cheshire, WA7 2ED. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 49



 

 23

APPENDIX 3 
 
 

Dear  
 
 
 
 
Please find below details of how we have worked out the money that we will pay to you under the 
Direct Payment Scheme.  The amount we pay you may change if your circumstances change.  
You should pay the money you get into your Direct Payment Bank Account. 
         
The Total Cost for your Service is     £ 
       
This was worked out from       
 
……. Hours at an hourly rate of £     £ 
……. Hours at an hourly rate of £     £    
….… Sessions of night sitting at £            per/night  £ 
……. Respite @ ……………………….    £ 
 
Carers Break  ……………………….    £ 
  
Total Direct Payment each week    £ 
 
Less your contribution from your income/benefits  £ 
 
= A total Direct Payment to you of    £ 
 
 
If you need any more information about how we worked out your Direct Payment please contact 
me on 01928 704436. 
 
If you agree with amounts shown please sign this form and return it to me in the prepaid 
envelope supplied. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Senior Direct Payment/Individualised.  ……………….………………… 

Budget Officer   
 
Service User Signature      ………………………………………  

(sign & return / keep for records) 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



 

 24

APPENDIX 4 

 

 
CONFIRMATION OR CHANGE OF BANK DETAILS 

 
 

Name(s) on Bank Account:  
(Please show the name as it is  
printed on the Bank Account) 
 
Address: 
(your address) 
 
 
 
Post Code: 
 
 
 
Name of Bank/Building Society 
(Bank Name) 
 
Sort Code 
 
Eight Digit Account Number 
 
Roll Number  
 
 
Service User Signature: 
 
Date: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 51



 

 25

APPENDIX 5 

 
HALTON BOROUGH COUNCIL                      

 
DIRECT PAYMENTS CONTRACT 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made the      day of     
 
 
Between HALTON BOROUGH COUNCIL (“the Council”) of Runcorn Town Hall, Runcorn and 
  
      
(“the recipient”) of    

        

      

 

 
WHEREAS: 
 
(a) the Council has conducted an assessment and subsequently determined that the needs 

identified in the attached care plan (Schedule 1) should be provided for the Recipient; 
 
(b) the Recipient is willing, able and has the capacity to arrange for the services marked (*) in 

the care plan (Schedule 1) to be met and the Council is willing to make a payment direct to 
the Recipient to enable him/her to do so; and 

 
(c) this agreement is made in accordance with the requirements of the Community Care 

(Direct Payments) Act 1996, and Carers & Disabled Children Act 2000. 
 
The purpose of this agreement is to set out the responsibilities and obligations of Halton Borough 
Council and      
, the Recipient of the Direct Payment. 
 
It is agreed by the parties as follows: 
 

1(a) The Council agrees to pay the Recipient 4 weeks Direct Payment every 28 days in 
advance starting on                          and in accordance with the  

  arrangements set out in the Direct Payment Statement Letter. 
 
(b) The equivalent of 2 weeks Direct Payment will be paid starting on                       in 

accordance with the arrangements set out in the Direct Payment Offer Letter as a 
contingency fund, which must only be used in accordance with the conditions as 
detailed in paragraph 20. 

 
2 The Council will make the Direct Payment by Banks Automated Clearing System (BACS) 

into a separate and dedicated Direct Payments account in the Recipient’s name.  The 
account number is                                                 at                                                                              
Bank. 

 
3-8 USE OF THE DIRECT PAYMENT  

Page 52



 

 26

 
3 The Council intends that a Direct Payment is the means by which the individual Recipient 

independently secures the services that the Council agreed the Recipient needs following 
assessment. 

 
4 The Recipient will use the Direct Payment monies to meet the needs identified in the care 

plan. 
 
5 The Council may increase or decrease the amount of the Direct Payment to the Recipient 

at any time on account of a change in assessed needs.  Before decreasing the amount of 
the Direct Payment the Council will give the Recipient a minimum of one weeks notice in 
writing and the reason for such decrease. 

 
6 A review of the support package and Recipient’s record keeping will take place 6 weeks 

after receipt of the first payment(s) to identify and respond to any problems which may 
have arisen and to prepare for the necessary monitoring (see paragraph 10). 

 
6.1 The Council will formally review the assessment of the Recipient and the operation of this 

agreement every 12 months (ie within every 12 month period there should be at least one 
review).  That review will determine whether the Recipient’s needs have changed and how 
the Recipient is coping with the arrangements for ensuring the provision of the services 
that meet these needs. 

 
7. The Recipient will not use the Direct Payment to employ/pay any partner (married or 

unmarried) or a close relative living in the same household (close relative means parent, 
parent-in-law, aunt, uncle, grandparent, son, daughter, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, step-
son or daughter, brother, sister or the spouse or partner of any of the preceding) to provide 
the services, unless in exceptional circumstances. This also applies to Direct Payments 
made to a person who has parental responsibility for a disabled child (Direct Payments paid 
in accordance with S172(a) Children Act 1989) and to payments made to a child aged 16 or 
17 (Direct Payments paid in accordance with S17A (2) (b) Children Act 1989).   

 
8. The Recipient will not use the Direct Payment; 
 

(a) to employ/pay for services provided by a local authority, NHS authority or 
NHS trust . 

(b) for permanent residential care for adults or for provision of residential 
accommodation for a disabled child or disabled young person for any single 
period in excess of 4 weeks and for more than 120 days in any period of 
twelve months. 

 
9-25 RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECT PAYMENT RECIPIENT 
 
9 The Recipient agrees that it is his/her responsibility to make all appropriate arrangements 

to meet the identified needs and agrees to comply with all legal requirements that may 
arise in making such appropriate arrangements including all Inland Revenue requirements 
and applicable employment legislation, to include Stakeholder Pensions and Redundancy 
requirements as appropriate. 

 
10 In order to enable the Council to monitor the use by the Recipient of the Direct Payment, 

the Recipient will:- 
 

Page 53



 

 27

(a) use the                                                        bank account number and ensure it will 
be used only for all transactions in respect of the Recipient’s care plan. 

 
(b) notify the Council as soon as possible of any changes in circumstances and details 

of the use of any element of the contingency funds (in a form specified by the 
Council).  Failure to comply with this requirement will result in the Direct Payments 
being suspended. 

 
(c) to maintain up to date records, supply these records to the Council when requested 

to do so, and retain all financial records for the current financial year and the 
preceding 6 years. 

 
(d) Pay for their care by either cheque or a direct debit.  Cash transactions are not 

acceptable. 
 

(e) To pay into the above bank account each time a Direct Payment is deposited, 
monies identified as the service user contribution, where applicable. 

 
(f) Small Packages of Care – New Service Users 

If your Direct Payment package is on average 15 hours per month or less, you may 
not be subject to regular full financial inspections.  Instead, the monitoring of your 
Direct Payment may be dealt with under an annual “self certification” scheme.  This 
will mean that: 

• The Direct Payments team will undertake an initial 6 week check (see 6.1 in 
this Contract). 

• After the first check with you to make sure you are happy using the Direct 
Payment system and that your financial records have been satisfactorily 
maintained, you will be asked to submit an annual “self certification” form.  
This will include a declaration that you have used your Direct Payment 
monies in accordance with the Direct Payments scheme, acknowledging that 
the Health & Community Directorate retains the right to audit your records if 
they want to. 

• You should continue to maintain and retain all records as listed in Section 
10c of this Contract. 

 
(g) Established Direct Payment Service Users – Those established Direct Payment 

service users who are able to demonstrate they have maintained records as 
required by the scheme and have had regular monitoring checks, may also be 
given the option of “self certifying” on an annual basis.  This option will be a joint 
decision between the Direct Payments monitoring service and the service user, and 
an assessment of risk will take place.  The Health & Community Directorate retains 
the right to audit service users’ records at any time.  You should continue to 
maintain and retain all records as listed in Section 10c of the Contract. 

 
11 There may be a number of reasons why a surplus has accrued in the bank account.  For 

example, there may be outstanding tax or national insurance not yet due or paid.  The 
contingency money will also be kept in the bank account as a reserve.  Alternatively, the 
Recipient may be ‘saving care’ to cover extra costs that would be incurred when they take 
personal assistant(s) with them to a special event.  However, this need must be agreed 
with their Social Worker and identified with relevant details on their care plan.  The credit 
balance should be explained to the satisfaction of the Direct Payment Manager.  However, 

Page 54



 

 28

if there is a credit balance in the account without a satisfactory reason, the Local Authority 
will reduce the Recipient’s next payment. 

 
12 Without prejudice to its rights (to terminate this agreement, under paragraphs 15 and 24) 

the Council may require the Recipient to repay to the Council the Direct Payment or any 
part of it if the Council is satisfied that:- 

 
(a) the Direct Payment or any part of it has not been used to secure the provision of the 

Services or some part of the Services, or 
 

(b) the Recipient has not met the conditions set out in paragraphs 7 or 8 or any other 
conditions of this agreement, or 

 
(c) the Recipient has received payment from a third party (for example, the 

Independent Living Fund) for the Services or some part of the Services. 
 
13 If the Recipient is admitted to hospital or other full time  care, the Council will pay the 

Direct Payment in full for the first 14 days of any such admittance (subject to a maximum 
payment of 14 days in any 12 month period) and shall pay half of the Direct Payment for 
the following 14 days of any such admittance (subject to a maximum of 14 days in any 12 
month period).  Thereafter, the Direct Payment shall be suspended until the Recipient is 
discharged from hospital or other care and recommences to receive the Services.  In any 
other circumstances, the Council may make a temporary suspension of the Direct 
Payment if the Recipient is temporarily unable to receive the Services for any other 
reason. 

 
14 It is the responsibility of the recipient of Direct Payments 

to name a person to administer closure of the Direct Payment in the event of their death.  
It is this person’s responsibility to ensure that non-committed funds are returned to the 
Directorate. 

 
15 It is the responsibility of the Direct Payment recipient to ensure that legal requirements, 

common sense and good practice are adhered to and ensure that the people they employ 
are not put at risk of being injured or infected as a result of the work they do.  When a 
personal assistant comes into a Direct Payment recipient's home both parties take on 
extra responsibilities. 

 
It is the Direct Payment recipient's responsibility to provide a healthy and safe workplace 
for people they employ and not to do anything, or ask them to do anything which may 
cause them injury.  It is also the duty of the person being employed not to do anything 
which might endanger either themselves or the Direct Payment recipient at any time. 
 
(See "Guide to Employing Personal Assistants"). 

 
16 The service user is responsible for manual handling risk assessments, and the Direct 

Payments Manager will feed back any concerns regarding the use of equipment to the 
Independent Living Team. 

 
17 The Recipient has the right to complain under the Council’s Social Care, Housing and 

Health Directorate’s complaints procedures about the operation of this agreement, but not 
regarding the service purchased direct from an agency or regarding matters relating to the 
employment of personal assistants. 

 

Page 55



 

 29

18 Either party may terminate this agreement by giving the other party 4 weeks notice in 
writing. 

 
19 The Recipient will notify the Council of any changes in circumstances as soon as possible. 
 
20 The Recipient will allow a representative of the Council reasonable access to:- 
 

(a) their home to enable a review of the care needs, and 
(b) papers on transactions relating to spending of their Direct Payment monies. 

 
21 The Recipient will be liable for payments under the Council’s Charging Policy for the 

Community Care Services and payment will be made in accordance with the standing 
policy and procedures (see paragraph 10e), if appropriate.  The Recipient agrees that 
such charges may be deducted at source from the Direct Payment. 

 
22 Calculation of the Direct Payment will be made in accordance with the Rate of Pay 

Schedule contained in the statement letter and the Care Plan details.  These will both be 
reviewed annually. 

 
23 The Recipient must seek the Social Worker’s approval for all expenditure of Contingency 

Fund monies.  Any Contingency Fund may be used:- 
 

(a) for covering illness of the Recipient that requires 1-3 days increased support, or 
(b) in exceptional circumstances as agreed with the Social Worker in advance if 

possible 
(c) to pay Statutory Sick Pay to Personal Assistants when they are unable to provide 

services to the Recipient due to illness in accordance with Statutory Sick Pay 
Regulations made by the Department of Social Security. 

 
24 If there is a problem with the Recipient overspending the Direct Payment, then advice and 

support should be offered and the overspend rectified.  If the problem persists, then the 
Direct Payment Manager may need to reassess the ability of the Recipient to manage the 
scheme, or a reassessment of need may need to be undertaken by a Social Worker.  If the 
Recipient spends more money than is allowed in the Direct Payment package, then they 
are liable for this extra support from their private funds.  If Services paid for have not been 
received, it is the responsibility of the Recipient to seek a refund from the Service provider.  
Equally, the Service provider should pursue the recovery of debts from the Recipient, if 
services have been received and not paid for. 

 
If the Recipient disputes the amount determined by the Council, he/she may appeal 
against the decision.  The Act gives the Local Authority the power to seek a repayment if 
the monies made available have not been used to purchase services identified in the Care 
Plan and contract, or were used to purchase a service from any of the people identified as 
being excluded.  It is essential that honest mistakes are seen as such, and repayments 
should only be sought where monies have been spent inappropriately or not spent at all. 

 
25 The Recipient may not assign or otherwise subcontract responsibility of any part of the 

Agreement without the prior written consent of the Council. 
 
26 Neither the Recipient of Direct Payments nor his/her employee(s) shall, in any 

circumstances, hold themselves out as being:- 
 

(a) the servant or agent of the Council, nor 

Page 56



 

 30

 
(b) authorised to enter into any contract on behalf of the Council in any way to bind to 

the performance, variation, release or discharge of any obligation. 
 
27-29 RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COUNCIL 

(a) Any of the terms and conditions of this agreement are not being met by the 
Recipient after advice and support have been given to assist the Recipient to meet 
these terms and conditions. 

(b) The Recipient is not spending the Direct Payments, or any part of them on Services 
to meet the needs identified in the Care Plan after advice and support have been 
given by the Council. 

(c) In terminating this agreement, the Council will provide up to 4 weeks monies in 
order to finalise this arrangement. 

 
28 In the event that the arrangement by the Recipient for the provision of the Service to 

him/herself breaks down (including back up arrangements), whether in an emergency or 
not, the Council undertakes to ensure that the Recipient receives the Services that the 
person has been assessed to receive to meet their agreed needs.  It is the responsibility of 
the Recipient to notify their Social Worker immediately of any such situation. 

 
29 The Council will:- 
 

(a) provide support and advice to Recipients of Direct Payments to enable them to 
receive and manage their payments, and to advise of any changes in relevant 
legislation; 

(b) make payments as detailed in this agreement, for the purchase of services as 
agreed; 

(c) have no responsibility for the service(s) purchased, beyond the provision of the 
Direct Payment; 

(d) formally review the assessment every 12 months or more frequently if required by 
the Recipient or their Social Worker (and subsequently payment may be varied 
accordingly); 

(e) monitor and audit the spending of Direct Payments. 
 
30 The Recipient of the Direct Payment is recommended to, and is responsible for obtaining 

employer’s liability insurance and public liability insurance. 
 
31 The authority is not liable to pay VAT, and it is not possible for the authority to make extra 

provision to cover the cost of VAT. 
 
32 The Recipient of the Direct Payment is required to, and is responsible for obtaining 

Enhanced Criminal Records Bureau Checks of his/her potential employee(s). 
 
33 Variations to this Agreement may only be made by the written consent of both parties, 

other than variations in the assessment. 
 
34 The Council and the Recipient agree to comply with all current and future legislation 

relevant to the provision of this Service. 
 
35 Recipients of Direct Payments who choose to adopt this means of meeting their needs are 

advised to consult the Direct Payments Manager for advice and support. 
 

Page 57



 

 31

36 “I agree to information given about myself being used and processed by the Council for 
the purposes of the administration of the Direct Payments account and other legal 
purposes of the Council.  I also agree that the information may be shared with other 
agencies on my behalf and that my details will be held on a database”. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have signed this agreement the day and year first 
before written 
 
Signed by 
For and on behalf of 
Halton Borough Council           Signature …………………… 
 
 
In the presence of: 
Signature of Witness …………………………………. 
 
Name of Witness  …………………………………. 
 
Address of Witness  …………………………………. 
 
    …………………………………. 
 
 
Signed by the said 
In the presence of:  ……………………... (recipient sign here) 
(service user signature or power of attorney) 
 
 
 
 
Name of Witness:         …………………………………… (witness) 
 
Address of Witness:  …………………………………. 
 

 …………………………………. 
 
Signature of Witness:         ……………………… (witness sign here) 
 
 
 
 
 
Name and   …………………………………. 
Address of Person     
Identified to administer …………………………………. 
Closure of account in 
The event of death  …………………………………. 
     
 
PLEASE RETURN THE WHOLE CONTRACT IN THE PRE-PAID ENVELOPE, A COPY WILL 

BE SENT BACK TO YOU. 
 

 

Page 58



 

 32

APPENDIX 6 

    

  
Dear  
 
DIRECT PAYMENTS SCHEME 
 
I am pleased to offer you the Direct Payment Scheme and below are details of the enclosed 
documents and what to do next: 
 

• 2 Statement letters – please sign both, keep one for your records and return one in the 
pre-paid envelope enclosed. 

• 1 contract – please read through and ensure you sign the contract where indicated on the 
back page and return the whole contract in the pre-paid envelope enclosed. 

• 2 Care Plans – please sign both, keep one for your records and return one in the pre-paid 
envelope enclosed. 

•  
If you agree to receive the Direct Payment, return the signed documents above.  Upon receipt of 
these documents I will arrange for the initial start up payment of     £                    (inc 2 weeks 
contingency) as agreed, to be paid into your bank account. 
 
When you are ready to start the Direct Payments Scheme, and have found a suitable provider.  
The first of the 4 weekly payments will commence on a date to be agreed.  This first payment will 
also include the contingency payment of £             (equivalent to 2 weeks payments) to be 
used in emergencies only. 
 
Direct Payments are made on a 4 weekly payment run.  Therefore the first payment will be 
calculated to bring you in line with the payment date. 
 
The local authority needs to be sure that you are administering your Direct Payment 
appropriately.  Therefore, I need to reiterate to you that you are obliged to undertake the 
following: 
 

• Open a separate bank account for your Direct Payments 

• Keep a record of how you spend the money.  The relevant forms will be sent to you in due 
course.  These will be monitored after 6 weeks after your first regular payment and every 
quarter. 

• Understand that Direct Payments can be used to pay close relatives who do not live in your 
household and, under very special circumstances, pay relatives who live in your household.  
This does not prevent people using the Direct Payment to pay someone who has been 
specially recruited to be a live-in personal assistant.  For this purpose, the Government 
defines a close relative as a parent, parent-in-law, aunt, uncle, grandparent, son, daughter, 
son-in-law, daughter-in-law, stepson, stepdaughter, brother, sister or the spouse or partner of 
any of the above. 

 
I look forward to receiving the signed statement and confirmation of bank details, but if you 
require any further information please do not hesitate to contact me on the telephone number 
overleaf. 
 
Yours sincerely 

Page 59



 

 33

APPENDIX 7 

RECORD OF AUDIT CHECKLIST 
 
Service User 
Address 
 
Carefirst Number 
Date of Audit:       
Period Covered by Audit: From:________________to:_____________________ 
                         
 
Checks to be made Initials of Auditor Comments from Auditor 
Timesheets   
Income & Expenditure 
Record 

  

Quarterly Tax Returns   
P.A.Y.E   
Employers NI   
Employee NI   
Tax   
Net Pay   
BACS Advice Slips - HBC   
Cheque Stubbs   
Bank Statements   
Client Contributions   
Transport Contributions   
Sickness Records   
Holidays   
Contingency   
Saving Care   
Invoices From Agency   
CRB Check & H&S 
Reminder 

  

Insurance Reminder   
 
Last Statement Number /Date  
Balance last audit  
Hours Allocated (Package Details)  
Contingency Amount (2 wks DP)  
Maximum Amount (8 wks DP)  
Client Contribution Amount per week  
NOTES 
 
 

Page 60



 

 34

APPENDIX 8 
BANK RECONCILIATION FORM  

 
SERVICE USER: __________________________________________________ 
 
ADDRESS:  __________________________________________________ 
 
   __________________________________________________ 
 
CAREFIRST NO ___________________ 
 

Balance on Bank Statement Sheet No: _________   £________ 
 
Less Payment not yet processed:     £Amount 
Cheque No: __________________    _______________ 
   __________________    _______________ 
   __________________    _______________ 
   __________________    _______________ 
   __________________    _______________ 
   __________________    _______________ 
   __________________    _______________ 
   __________________    _______________ 
   __________________    _______________ 
 
Total Payments not yet processed (b)  _______________________ (b) 
 
Add income not shown on Statement    £Amount 
Item 1  __________________    _______________ 
Item 2  __________________    _______________ 
Item 3  __________________    _______________ 
 
Total Income not on Statement (c)     _______________ (c)  
 
Adjusted bank balance (a – b + c) = (d)    _______________ (d) 
 
Balance as per Income & Expenditure record (e)   _______________ (e) 
 
Variance (d – e )        _______________ 
Reason for variance 
 
Service user signature: ______________________ Date: _______________ 
 
Reconciled by:              ______________________ Date: _______________ 
 
Countersigned:              ______________________ Date: _______________ 
 

 

Page 61



 

 35

APPENDIX 9 

 

 
 

DIRECT PAYMENTS REVIEW 
 

Date of Review:…………….. 
 

Service User Name:  

Carefirst Number:  

Start of Service:  

Use of Direct Payment:  

Hours Allocated:  

Net Direct Payment:  

Service User Contribution:  

 

Present:   
 
 
 
 
Summary of Meeting: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Issues to be referred to SW Team: 
 

ISSUE REFERRED BY DATE 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 
Date of next review: …… …………………….. 

Page 62



 

 36

APPENDIX 10 

START UP CHECKLIST FOR DIRECT PAYMENT RECIPIENTS 
 

SERVICE USER:  …………………………….……….   Contact Details if Diff …………………………. 
 

ADDRESS:  …………………………………………………………. POSTCODE :……..……….. 
        

CAREFIRST NO: ……………….  DATE OF BIRTH: …………….……  TEL NO:..………………… 
 

NO. OF HOURS: ……………….……… RATE: ………..……….ETHNICITY:…………………… 
 

GROSS AMOUNT OF DP: …………………………………………………………………………….. 
 

DIRECT PAYMENT TO BE USED FOR: .…………….……….……………………………………… 
 

COMMUNITY CARE BUDGET  /CARERS BREAK BUDGET   /  SUPPORTING PEOPLE BUDGET 
(PLEASE CIRCLE ACCORDINGLY) 

 
Referral Date …………….…………….. Referred By/Team:……………………..….. 

 
Visit Date Arranged:   …………………………………………… 

 
Need for Recruitment :PAYROLL / ADVOCACY / RECRUITMENT : ……………     

 
Need for INSURANCE FORM / CRB FORMS ……………….. 

 
Financial Assessment Completed – Charge………………. Date sent to WelfareRights…………… 
 
Net Direct Payment per week: ……………………… 

 
Bank Details Received ………………………………   

 
Date sent over to Halton Purchasing……..………….  Agesso Code Number:…………… 

 
Offer Letter Sent ……………………………………. 

 
Statement Letters Sent ………………………………  Returned..………………….. 

 
Contract Sent ………………………………………..  Returned…………………… 

 
Copy of Contract Sent to Client/Team ……………… 

 
Start Date: ……………………………………………  Date Loaded on Schedule……………… 

 
6 Week Review Date: ……………………………….. 

 
Date loaded onto Database:……………Date Loaded onto Carefirst:……………Date Emailed to 
Finance:…………… 

 
Date Index Card Completed:……………Date Loaded as Employer:……………CRB Check 
sent:……………                      NOTES:…………………………………………………………………… 
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Page 63



 

 37

APPENDIX 11 

 

DIARY NOTES 
 

 

Service User: 
 
Address: 
 
Carefirst No: 

 
 
 
 
 
Date 
 

 
Notes 

 
Signature 

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



 

 38

APPENDIX 12 

 

CARERS BREAK DIRECYMENT AGREEMENT FOR CARERS ONLY 

The purpose of this agreement is to set out the responsibilities and obligations 
of Halton Borough Council and …………………………………….. the recipient of 
the Carers Break Direct Payment. 
 
This Carers Break DIRECT PAYMENTS AGREEMENT is made between Halton 
Borough Council (“the council” and  
 
(Name) ……………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
(Address) ……………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
  ……………………………………………………………………………………. 
The above mentioned Carers Break Direct Payment recipient agrees as follows: 

1. I agree that I will only use my Carers Break Direct Payment to buy the services 
as detailed in my Care Plan, and any related expenses that have been agreed 
with Halton Borough Council. 

 
2. I understand that the Council will formally review the assessment and Carers 

Break Direct Payments every 12 months.  If I am assessed for different services 
I will be reassessed for Carers Break Direct Payments. 

 
3. I agree to allow Halton Borough Council to deposit my Carers Break Direct 

Payment into an existing bank account.  If I do not have a bank account I agree 
to open a new Bank Account. 

PLEASE COMPLETE YOUR BANK DETAILS BELOW 
Name(s) on Bank Account :____________________________________ 
 
Address (your address) :____________________________________ 
 
Name of Bank   :____________________________________ 
 
Sort Code    :____________________________________ 
 
Account Number   :____________________________________ 
 
Roll Number    :____________________________________ 
(if building society) 

Page 65



 

 39

4. I agree to keep all receipts relating to how my Direct Payments have been 
spent and supply these receipts to the Council if requested to do so.  Failure to 
produce receipts on request may result in future payment requests being 
refused. 

 
5. I agree that I will meet all legal requirements and obligations relating to the 

services I pay for using my “Carers Break” Direct Payment.  (The Direct 
Payments Team can tell you more about these requirements and any other 
queries about your “Carers Break” Direct Payment. 

 
6. I agree to take out Employer’s and Public Liability Insurance if I am employing 

my own staff and I understand that my “Carers Break” Direct Payment will cover 
this cost or I will pay for the Insurance out of my own personal funds. 

 
7. I agree that I will not use my Carers Break Direct Payment to employ my 

partner (married or not) or any of my close relatives who live with me.  This 
means a parent, parent-in-law, aunt, uncle, grandparent, son, daughter, son-in-
law, daughter-in-law, step son or daughter, brother, sister, or spouse or partner 
of any of these.  (In exceptional circumstances, relatives may be employed, but 
only by prior agreement with the Council). 

 
8. I understand that the Council strongly recommends that I should ask for 

appropriate checks to be made through the Criminal Records Bureau on all my 
prospective employees. 

 
9. I understand that I will not use my Direct Payment to pay any charges due to 

the Council. 
 

10. I understand that I can stop my Direct Payments by giving four weeks’ 
notice and agree to repay any unspent money. 

 
11. I agree to information given about myself being used and processed by the 

Council for the purpose of the administration of the “Carers Break” Direct 
Payments account and other legal purposes of the Council.  I also agree that 
the information may be shared with other agencies on my behalf and that my 
details will be held on a database. 

 
I understand that if I do not keep to the above terms and conditions Halton 
Borough Council may stop the payments without notice and I may be 
required to return all or part of the money I have received. 
 
Signed: _________________________ Dated:___________________ 
   (Recipient) 
Signed: _________________________ Dated:___________________ 
   (On behalf of the Council) 

Page 66



 

 40

APPENDIX 13 

DIRECT PAYMENTS SELF CERTIFICATION FORM 
 

New service users whose Direct Payment packages average 15 hours per month or less, may 
‘self certify’ in certain circumstances.  Established Direct Payment service users who are able 
to demonstrate they have maintained records as required by the scheme may also be invited 
to ‘self certify’.  If service users choose this option, then the following declaration must be 
completed: 
 
 
I …………….. …………………………………………….. (name of service user) hereby declare 
that I have received Direct Payments for my support needs. 
 
I confirm that the funds received from Halton Borough Council have been used to provide 
services to meet the needs detailed in my Care Plan. 
 
I further confirm that I have complied with all Inland Revenue requirements and employment 
legislation, (where applicable).  I also confirm that I have maintained adequate employer’s 
liability insurance (where applicable), maintained all records and agree to keep all records as 
per Section 10c in the Contract. 
 
If your balance on your Direct Payment account is more than 8 weeks the value of your weekly 
payment, Halton Borough Council has the right to reduce or suspend a number of payments.  
 

Most Recent Bank Statement 
Number 

 

Period From and To:  
Balance on Most Recent Bank 

Statement 
 

  
Please tell us about any 

payments that have not yet 
cleared that will affect your 

current balance. 

 

Payments to Providers  

  
Payments to PA’s  

  
Payments to Inland Revenue  

  
Payments to Insurance Company  

  
Details of any other payments  

 
I acknowledge that Halton Borough Council retains the right to audit my accounts. 
 
Print Name:  ____________________  Signed:_________________ 
 
Date:  ____________________ 
 
 
 

Page 67



 

 41 

APPENDIX 14 
DIRECT PAYMENT REQUEST FORM   

SERVICE USER NAME: 
  

CAREFIRST No: 
 

PACKAGE DETAILS – HOURS PER WEEK: 
 

HOURLY RATE: 
 

 
TEAM 
(circle)  

 
OPW 

 
OPR 

 
ALD 

 
PSD 

 
MHT 

 
RARS 

 
AHT 

   
 
FUNDED BY 
(circle) 

 
COMMUNITY 

CARE 
BUDGET 

 

 
CARERS 
BREAK 

BUDGET 

 
SUPPORTING 

PEOPLE 
BUDGET 

 
PCT 

 
OTHER 

  

 
REQUEST 
TO: 
(circle) 

START 
SERVICE 

INCREASE 
SERVICE 

DECREASE 
SERVICE 

SUSPEND 
SERVICE 

STOP 
SERVICE 

  

 
START DATE END DATE (if not ongoing) GROSS WEEKLY COST LUMP SUM PAYMENT 

 
 
 

   

SUMMARY OF SERVICE TO BE PURCHASED WITH DIRECT PAYMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
SOCIAL WORKER/CARE MANAGER: 
 
 
Date: 

PRACTICE MANAGER: 
 
 
Date: 

DIRECT PAYMENTS/INDIVIDUALISED 
BUDGETS OFFICER: 
 
Date: 

PASSED AT PANEL:  YES / NO     PLEASE ENSURE THAT CARE PLAN AND PANEL REPORT ARE ATTACHED TO THIS BEFORE SENDING 
TO THE DIRECT PAYMENTS TEAM. 
Send To:  Direct Payments Team, Runcorn Town Hall, Heath Road, Runcorn, WA7 5BR, Tel 01928 704436, Fax 01928 704378 

P
a
g
e
 6

8



P
a

g
e
 6

9



 

 43 

APPENDIX 15 

        

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE RECORD FOR PERIOD:……………………………….  TO  ……………………………… 
        

Service User : …………………………………………………………………     

        

Address: ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………….    

        

        

        

                

DATE CHEQUE NO. PAYMENT TO / FROM DETAILS INCOME EXPENDITURE BALANCE INITIALS 

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

P
a
g
e
 7

0



Page 71



 

 45

APPENDIX  16 

REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF MONEY SPENT ON 
CONTINGENCIES 
 
 
Service User: ………………………………………………. 
 
 
Address: …………………………………………………… 
 
……………………………………………………………... 
 
……………………………………………………………... 
 
Ref Number………………………………………………… 
 
Creditor Reference Number ( for officer use only)… 
 
 
 
I request reimbursement of expenditure from the contingency as follows: 
 
Details of expenditure to include: 
 
Reason (receipts must be attached): 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date(s):  ………………………………………………………… 
 
Hours used: …………………………………………………….. 
 
Total paid: ……………………………………………………… 
 
 
 
Service user signature: …………………………………………..  Date: …………….. 
 
 
Client Finance Manager signature: ……………………………   Date: …………….. 

Page 72



REPORT TO: Executive Board Sub Committee 
 
DATE: 18 March 2010 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Health & Community 
 
SUBJECT: 2010/11 Charges for Riverview Gypsy Site 
 
WARD(S): Riverside 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To seek approval for revised site charges for Riverview Gypsy site for 

the financial year 2010/11. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDED – that the proposed 3% increase to pitch rental 

and 16.7% increase in water charges set out in the report be 
approved with effect from 5th April 2010. 

  
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 The table below sets out the existing weekly charges levied for pitch 

rental and water/sewerage for 2009/10, and the proposed charges for 
2010/11. These apply on a 48 week year. 

  
 2009/10 2010/11 

(proposed) 
Difference 

Pitch Rental 21 @ £48.99 
  1 @ £57.16 

21 @ £50.46 
  1 @ £58.88 

+3% 

Water & 
sewerage  

  23 @ £9.57 23 @ £11.17 +16.7% 

 
3.2 The Council’s inflation allowance for general income for the coming 

year is 2%. However, as last year an above inflation increase is being 
proposed for the pitch rental in order to move towards a balanced 
budget for the scheme, and an increase of 3% (1% above the Council’s 
general inflation allowance) is therefore proposed. 

 
3.3 Regulations prohibit the resale of water at a profit and so the charge 

proposed for 2010/11 is based on actual costs incurred in 2009/10. 
Costs significantly increased in 2009/10 totalling £12,333.85 for the last 
four billing periods. Dividing this sum by the number of pitches and 
charging weeks produces a requirement for a weekly charge of £11.17. 
This is 16.7% higher than the current charge. 

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1  None. 
 
 

Agenda Item 3gPage 73



5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 The proposed charges will enable the Council to continue to properly 

fund the management and maintenance of the Riverview site. 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton 
 
 None identified. 
 
6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
 
 None identified. 
 
6.3 A Healthy Halton 
 
 None identified. 
 
6.4 A Safer Halton 
 

None identified. 
 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 
 None identified. 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 Failure to increase the charges as outlined in the report would result in 

a growing financial deficit for the scheme, which would have to be met 
from base budget. 

 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.0   Gypsy/Travellers are a recognised BME group, and the continued 

provision of a properly funded, managed and maintained site ensures 
the Council continues to meet the needs of this group. 

 
8.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
  
 Document Place of inspection Contact Officer 
 
 None    
 

Page 74



 
REPORT:   Executive Board Sub Committee 
 
DATE:   18 March 2010 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director - Environment  
 
SUBJECT:   Review of Fees and Charges  
 
WARDS:   Boroughwide 
 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 In conjunction with the annual budget review it is proposed to increase the 

charges under the control of the Executive Board Sub Committee in accordance 
with the schedules shown in the Appendix.  

 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1  The proposed fees and charges be agreed and referred to the relevant 

Policy and Performance Boards for information. 
 
3 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 The review of Fees and Charges has been carried out as part of the budget 

preparations for 2010/2011.  As a consequence of the review it is proposed that 
existing fees and charges be increased in line with inflation.   

 
3.2 The schedule in the attached Appendix includes a number of Statutory Fees that 

may increase during the coming Financial Year and Members are asked to agree 
to these increases as they occur. 

 
4 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The effects of the proposals have been incorporated into the draft budgets for 

2010/2011. Charges are adjusted annually in accordance with the current 
inflation rate.    

          

5 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 There are no policy implications.  
 
6 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children & Young People in Halton 
 

There are no implications. 

Agenda Item 4aPage 75



 
6.2 Employment Learning & Skills in Halton 
 

There are no implications. 
 

6.3 A Healthy Halton 
 

There are no implications. 
 

6.4 A Safer Halton 
 

There are no implications. 
 

6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal  
 
There are no implications. 
 

7 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 Not Applicable 
 
8 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1 There are no issues under this heading. 
 
9 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
9.1 There are no background papers under the meaning of the Act. 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 76



APPENDIX 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION 
 
  PRESENT PROPOSED 
Charges will apply subject to and in compliance with current statutory regulations   

  £ £ 
 The basis for charging is:   
    
(1) Where the information already exists in the format requested:   
    
 Admin Charge - Charge inclusive of copying of first sheet. 11.34 11.60 
 A4 –per subsequent sheet. 0.51 0.52 
 A3 - per subsequent sheet  0.78 0.80 
 A2 –per subsequent sheet  1.53 1.56 
 A1 - per subsequent sheet  6.44 6.56 
    
(2) Where assistance is required from Council staff to either extract interpret, or   
 describe material, the staff time is charged at an hourly rate given below:   
    
 Manager  118.52 121.00 
 Professional Staff    99.37 101.50 
 Admin. Support  59.77 61.00 
 Typing Fees (hourly rate) 54.40 55.50 
 (Minimum Charge – Half an Hour for above 4 items)    
    
 Charges above are inclusive of VAT.   
 Postage  At Cost At Cost 
 
 
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION REGARDING POTENTIALLY CONTAMINATED LAND 
 
  PRESENT PROPOSED 
 Land contamination reports for a given property or site is issued detailing all 

information held by HBC relating to known or potential contamination including 
historical, land use, landfill locations and details of site investigations and 
remediation contamination 

  

  £ £ 
 The Charge varies depending on the size of the site for which information is 

requested:- 
  

(1) For premises equivalent to less than 10 hectares in size.    
 (e.g. a Single Domestic Property or a Small Factory Unit)   
    
 (i) The premises site only 60.25 61.50 
    
 (II) Any search of the premises site and the land within 250 metres of the site  

     boundaries 
 

98.50 
 

100.50 
    
 (iii) Any search of the premises site and the land within 500 metres of the site  

      boundaries 
 

163.75 
 

167.00 
    
 (iv) Any search of the premises site and the land within 1000 metres of the site  

      boundaries 
 

217.50 
 

222.00 
    
(2) For premises equivalent to more 10 hectares in size.    
       (e.g. a Housing estate or a large factory unit)   
    
 (i) The premises site only 98.50 100.50 
    
 (ii) Any search of the premises site and the land within 250 metres of the site  

     boundaries 
 

163.75 
 

167.00 
    
 (iii) Any search of the premises site and the land within 500 metres of the site    

     boundaries 
 

217.50 
 

222.00 
    
 (iv) Any search of the premises site and the land within 1000 metres of the site  

      boundaries 
 

273.00 
 

278.50 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 77



REQUESTS FOR ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION  
For Commercial enquiries i.e. not schools, residents or bone fide student research 
  PRESENT PROPOSED 
  £ £ 
 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACT   
    
(1) List of authorised part “B” Processes 38.00 38.75 
    
(2) List of authorised part “A” Processes 39.00 39.75 
 (Available separately from the Environment Agency)   
    
(3) Copy of Application for Authorisation from file 23.00 

Per Document 
23.50 

Per Document 
    
(4) Supplying a hard copy of the strategy for the inspection of contaminated land to 

commercial undertakings 
 

23.00 
 

23.50 
    
(5) Supplying a hard copy of the air quality review and assessment to commercial 

undertakings 
 

23.00 
 

23.50 
    
(6) Assistance from Council Staff to extract, Interpret or describe above material 25.00 25.50 
 OTHER INFORMATION   
    
(1) One months data from pollution monitoring station 322.00 328.50 
    
(2) Three months data from pollution monitoring station 882.00 900.00 
    
(3) Six months data from pollution monitoring station 1,262.00 1,287.50 
    
(4) Supplying a copy of consultants report 39.00 39.75 
   
 Charges will apply subject to and in compliance with current statutory regulations  
 
Note 
Charges inclusive of VAT where applicable 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES CHARGES 
 
Charges will apply subject to and in compliance with current statutory regulations 

 
  PRESENT PROPOSED 
  £ £ 
    
(1)* Clearing Drains at Domestic Premises – Hourly Rate 68.00 69.50 
  (Minimum 1 Hour) (Minimum 1 Hour) 
(2)* Pest Control   
    
  (i) Commercial Premises   
   - Hourly Rate 60.00 61.25 
   - Minimum Charge (excluding materials)  76.25 77.75 
  (ii) Disinfestations of empty domestic properties 71.00 (Inclusive of 

Materials) 
72.50 

 Domestic Premises for wasps/ bees, fleas, ants and other seasonal pests      
           (£10 refund if premises are visited but no treatment carried out) 
 

 
22.50 

 
23.00 

                 (iii)   Squirrels and moles  60.00 61.25 
    
(3)  Condemned Food Certificates   
    
  (i) Charges under £5 to be waived.  Maximum certificate charge –  

    £220.00 
5% of Total Value 5% of Total Value 

    
 (ii) The fee charged will be increased by the cost of any fees paid 

      out for the specialised disposal of food. 
At Cost At Cost 

    
 (4) Certification of Food Products for Export   
 - Certificates requiring signature 56.00 57.00 
 - Other documents requiring stamp 6.50 6.75 
    
 (5) Food Hygiene Training Courses   
 (i) Basic Food Hygiene Course (minimum) 56.00 57.00 
    
 (ii) Other Course/Seminars To vary To vary 
  According to According to 
  Demand and Demand and 
  to reflect full to reflect full 
  Cost recovery Cost recovery 
    

Page 78



(6) Fresh Meat and Poultry Regulations 1990 As agreed with As agreed with 
  Strategic Director Strategic Director 
  Environment  Environment & 

Economy 
    
(7) Kennelling of Dogs  

(i) Reclaiming of Stray Dogs 
 

As agreed with 
 

As agreed with 
  Strategic Director Strategic Director 
  Environment Environment & 

Economy 
    
 (ii)*  Collection of Dogs from repossessed premises        70.50 72.00 
    
 (iii) Transportation of non seized animals i.e. dogs/cats to kennels or  

      other premises 
70.50 72.00 

    
(8) EPA Authorisation - Application – Statutory Fee As Advised As Advised 
      - Renewal – Statutory Fee As Advised As Advised 
    
(9) Disclosure of Information   
 (i) Information obtained under the Health and Safety at Work  Act 

1974 Etc.  
120.00 122.50 

                 (ii) Voluntary Disclosure of Information 101.00 103.00 
                 (Plus Photocopying Charge of 50p per Sheet)   
    
(10) Acupuncture, tattooing, Ear Piercing and Electrolysis Establishments 

- Registration Fee 
 

92.00 
 

94.75 
 
NOTE 
Charges marked with an asterisk are subject to the addition of VAT at the Standard Rate. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 79



LICENCE FEES 
 
HACKNEY CARRIAGE & PRIVATE HIRE CHARGES 
 
 
  PRESENT PROPOSED 
  2009/10 2010/11 
  £ £ 
    
(1) Single Status Driver    
 - First Grant  (Including 1 copy of user Guide) 164.00 167.00 
 - Renewal 149.00 152.00 
 - Extra copy of User Guide  14.50 15.00 
 - Extra copy of knowledge test syllabus 7.00 7.00 
 - Replacement Badges At cost 10.00 
                 - Replacement or duplicate paper licence or other document 0.00 5.00 
                   
    
(2) Vehicle Licence    
 - Grant and Renewals 1 Year – Hackney Carriage 192.50++ 196.50++ 
 - Grant and Renewals 1 Year – Private Hire 195.00++ 199.00++ 
 ****- Transfers Balance of 1 Year as above   
                 - Temporary Transfer Fees (Licence issued for a maximum of 2 months) 50.00 75.50~~ 
                 - Replacement Vehicle Plate (each) 0.00 15.00 
                 - Replacement Bracket (each) 0.00 15.00 
                 - Replacement Doors Stickers Private Hire (Pair) 0.00 20.00 
                 - Replacement Internal plate 0.00 10.00 
                 - Replacement or duplicate paper licence or other document 0.00 5.00 
                    
    
(3) Private Hire Operator Licence    
 *- Standard        518.00 528.00 
 ** - Discounted    197.00 201.00 
                  - Replacement or duplicate paper licence or other document  5.00 
    
(4) Taxi Knowledge Test 18.50 19.00 
 *** Retest Fee (per re-test after second attempt)   
    
(5) LOWERHOUSE LANE DEPOT FEES:   
 HACKNEY CARRIAGE & PRIVATE HIRE   
                 - Vehicle Test Fee 50.50 51.50 
 - Vehicle Re-test Fee 18.50 19.00 
 - Vehicle Test Un-notified Cancellation Fee 17.50 18.00 
 - ++Includes Taximeter Sealing Fee See ++  See++ 
                     
    
 
NOTES 
* Standard fee is charged if operator has 30 or more vehicles on system. 
** Discounted fee is charged if operator has fewer than 30 vehicles in system 
*** Further charges may apply per retest after second attempt 
**** Unless part of a single transaction involving a simultaneous grant in which case £24.50 
++ Includes Taximeter Sealing Fee.  Owners of Private Hire Vehicles that are not equipped with meters may apply for the 

meter charge to be discounted from the annual licence fee.  
~~ Temporary Transfer - Includes fee for licence to be transferred back to the original owner  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 80



LICENCE FEES (OTHER THAN HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE CHARGES) 
 
  PRESENT PROPOSED 
  £ £ 
  2009/10 2010/11 
    
(1) Dangerous Wild Animals 57.50 58.50 
    
(2) Pet Shops 57.50 58.50 
    
(3) Animal Boarding Establishments 57.50 58.50 
    
(4) Riding Establishments 57.50 58.50 
    
(5) Breeding of Dogs 57.50 58.50 
    
(6) Street Trading    
 - First Grant & Renewal 327.50 334.00 
 - Additional Vehicles (Per Vehicle) 163.00 166.00 
 - “Static” First Grant 378.00 385.50 
 - Change of Vehicle 25.50 26.00 
    
(7) Hawkers etc. Cheshire County Council Act 197.50 201.50 
    
(8) House to House Collections Nil Nil 
    
(9) Street Collections Nil Nil 
    
(10) Scrap Metal Dealers Nil Nil 
    
(11) Motor Salvage Operator registration 60.50 61.50 
    
(12) Sex Establishments To be determined on 

application 
 

To be determined on 
application 

(13) Licensing Act 2003 See Councils Web Site 
for details 

 

See Councils Web Site 
for details 

(14) Gambling Act 2005 See Councils Web Site 
for details 

 

See Councils Web Site 
for details 

(15) Hypnotism Nil Nil 
    
(16) Performing Animals Nil Nil 
    
 
NOTES 
The fee charged for items 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 will be increased by the cost of any fees paid out for specialist reports required before a 
Licence is granted. 
 
Item 12 The expression “Sex Establishment” includes Sex Entertainment Venues, Sex Cinemas and Sex Shops 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



 
ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION ACT 1984 PRESENT PROPOSED 
 £ £ 
(1) The making of a Temporary Order at the request of a 1,600.00 1,635.00 
      Third party (The fee is inclusive of advertising costs)   
   
(2) The making of a Permanent Order As agreed with As agreed with 
 Strategic Director Strategic Director 
 Environment Environment & 

Economy 
   
(3) The issuing of a temporary closure notice (including emergency notices)   240.00 245.00 
      at the request of a third party   
   
(4) The Issuing of a diversionary notice at the request of a third party  200.00 205.00 
   
HIGHWAYS ACT 1980    
   
(1) Applying to the Magistrates Court for an Order to stop up or divert a highway 540.00 551.00 
    - Permanent closure (Excluding appeal costs) Also applies to closures/diversions  Plus Technical &  Plus Technical &  
      under Town & Country Planning Act 1990  Advertising Costs Advertising Costs 
   
(2) Issuing of Scaffolding/Hoarding permit 50.00 

Plus £15.00 per 
week or part 

thereof 

51.00 
Plus £15.00 per 

week or part 
thereof 

   
(3) Issuing of Skip Permit 34.00 35.00 
   
(4) Removal of unauthorised skip At Cost 

Minimum £180.00 
plus £7.00 to 

£15.00 per day 
storage fee  

At Cost 
Minimum £185.00 

plus £7.00 to 
£15.00 per day 

storage fee 
   
(5) Issuing of permits to erect structures/equipment over or under the highway At Cost 

Minimum £66.00 
At Cost 

Minimum £67.50  
   
(6) Construction of vehicular crossings on footways As agreed with As agreed with 
 Strategic Director Strategic Director 
 Environment Environment & 

Economy 
   
(7) Section 38 Agreements 8%of works cost 8%of works cost 
 Plus £500.00 Plus £500.00 
   
(8) Section 278 Agreements As agreed with As agreed with 
 Strategic Director Strategic Director 
 Environment Environment & 

Economy 
   
(9) Alfresco Dining Areas Licence   

- First Licence  266.00 271.50 
- Renewal of Licence 70.00 71.50 

   
(10) ‘A’ Board Licence – Per Annum  50.00 51.00 
   
(11) Shop Displays Licence – Per Annum  89.00 91.00 
   
(12) Other Part Viia e.g. Promotions & Leisure At Cost 

Minimum £89.00 
Per licence 

At Cost 
Minimum £91.00  

Per licence 
   
(13) Minor Highways Works Permits  772.50 788.00 
   
HIGHWAY SEARCHES   
   
(1) Letter and plan showing adopted highway  35.00 35.75 
   
(2) Additional questions  10.00 10.20 
   
SIGNING   
   
(1) The design and erection of a traffic sign(s) at the request of a third party As agreed As agreed 
      (VAT to be added in all cases) With the With the 
 Strategic Director Strategic Director 
 Environment Environment & 

Economy 

Page 82



   
(2) Provision of H Bar Road Markings  57.50 58.75 
      (VAT to be added in all cases)   
   
(3) Authorisation of Temporary Direction Signs  103.00 105.00 
     (Normally for Housing Developments and Events)   
            (VAT to be added in all cases)   
   
(4) Provision of Disabled persons parking space (subject to meeting criteria) - No charge 
   
TRAFFIC SIGNALS   
   
(1) Supply of Information on operation of traffic signals 60.00 61.00 
      (VAT to be added in all cases)   
   
BUILDING ACT 1984 Section 18    
   
Legal Charge for supplying and administering agreements (together with design 
checking and supervision charges as determined by the Strategic Director-Environment 

190.00 194.00 

   
STREET NAMING AND NUMBERING    

- Up to 2 Dwellings 21.00 21.50 
- Between 3 and 10 dwellings 103.00 105.00 
- Schemes over 10 dwellings 309.00 315.00 

(No VAT – Outside the Scope of VAT)   
   
ROAD SAFETY   
   
(1) Adult Cycle Training (Requests from outside Borough) – 3 Hour Course 51.50 52.50 
    (VAT to be added in all cases)   
   
(2)Clearance of Accident Debris  At Cost At Cost 
   
(3) Supply of Accident Data  51.50 52.50 
   
Traffic Data   
   
Supply of Automatic Traffic Count Data  At Cost 

Minimum £51.50 
At Cost  

Minimum £52.50  
(No VAT – Outside the Scope of VAT)   
   
   
NEW ROADS AND STREET WORKS ACT 1991   
   
(1) Unit of Inspection (30% of Total)                                                      (Statutory Fee) 25.00 25.00 
   
(2) Defective Reinstatements - Per inspection (maximum 3 No.)                (Statutory Fee) 47.50 47.50 
                                               -  Additional Single Inspection                      (Statutory Fee) 68.00 68.00 
                                                 (Appropriate if defect reported by a Member of public)   
   
(3) Section 50 - Street Works Income   

(i) New Apparatus   
- Administration Fee (non returnable) 140.00 143.00 
- Capitalised Fee in lieu of Annual Charges 165.00 168..50 
- Inspection Charges (3 Number)                                (Statutory Fee) 75.00 75.00 

(ii) Existing Apparatus   
 - Administration Fee (non returnable) - payable in advance 103.00 105.00 

                                - Inspection Charges (3 Number)                                (Statutory Fee) 75.00 75.00 
 
Some New Road and Street Works Charges are Statutory Fees, (as indicated above) and are subject to change during 2010/11. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 83



 
 
MISCELLANEOUS  
 

   PRESENT PROPOSED 
     
   £ £ 
1. Supply photocopy of the following:   
     
 (i) A copy Building Regulation approval or completion certificate including  21.97 22.50 
  Any other information normally attached (up to a maximum of 4 pages   
  additional pages will be charged at 50p per copy)   
     
 (ii) Four copies of the appropriate parts of an 29.12 29.75 
  ordnance survey sheet necessary for the proper   
  submission of a planning or building regulation   
  (includes Ordnance Survey Licence)   
     
 (iii) Any other chargeable documents 37.29 38.00 
     
 (iv) Assistance from Council Staff to extract, interpret or describe this 

material 
26.57 27.00 

     
 (v) A4 Aerial Photograph Charge as A4 

Document 
Charge as A4 

Document 
     
 (vi) Copy of tree preservation order Charge as A4 

Document 
Charge as A4 

Document 
     
 (vii) Copy of Consultant Report 68.97 70.50 
     
2. Copy of larger format plans 10.47 10.75 
    
3. Map Production    

(i) Administration Charge 11.34 11.60 
(ii) Price per Copy     A4 0.51 0.52 
  A3 0.78 0.80 
  A2 1.53 1.56 

 

  A1 6.44 6.56 
   A0 10.22 10.50 
     
 (iii) Price Per Disc  - cd-r 54.40 55.50 
                          - dvd-r 65.39 66.75 
     
  Assistance from Council Staff to extract. Interpret or describe material  99.37 101.50 
 (iv) Flat rate of £12.88 to be added for access to OS data 12.88 12.88 
    
3. Copies of weekly list of planning applications to non public authority applicants 291.20 297.00 
 for one year, payable in advance.   
    
4. Section 106, Town & Country Planning Act 1990   
    
 (i) Charges to developers for the preparation of agreements   
  under the above legislation relating to the adoption of   
  open space, together with any necessary supervision   
     
  Legal & Supervision Costs A fee to be 

negotiated as 
Appropriate 

A fee to be 
negotiated as 
Appropriate 

     
 (ii) Other Section 106 Agreements As agreed As agreed 
   With the With the 
   Strategic Director Strategic Director 
   Environment Environment & 

Economy 
5. Provision of non statutory information   
     
 (i) Per question (Estate Agents, etc.) 37.29 38.00 
     
 (ii) Per question reporting conditions compliance 63.37 64.75 
 
NOTE 

Charges inclusive of VAT where applicable. 

 

Page 84



 
REPORT TO: Executive Board Sub Committee  
 
DATE: 18th March 2010 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director – Corporate & Policy 
 
SUBJECT:                                    Market – Stall Charges 
 
WARDS: N/A 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To consider a proposal to increase Widnes Market stall rent charges for 

financial year 2010 – 2011. 
 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION:  
 

To agree an initial 7% increase for 2010 – 2011 with the proviso that 
the increase will be reduced to 2% if payments are made by Direct 
Debit/Standing Order. 
  

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

Due to the economic climate the Council agreed for 2009/2010 to 
provide financial assistance to traders in the form of a discount which 
was in effect worth 12.5% 
 
Trade was down and stallholders were finding it increasingly difficult to 
pay the stall rent. However, the decision proved to be worthwhile as the 
discount helped traders financially and stemmed the potential loss of 
many businesses from the market. 
 
For the coming year the Council has some extremely difficult financial 
issues to manage, and in normal circumstances may have looked to 
recover a substantial amount of the discounted rent. Nevertheless, it is 
acknowledged that trading conditions have not improved sufficiently to 
consider this option. 
 
Instead the proposal to increase stall rent by 7% with a reduction to 2% 
for those agreeing to pay by Direct Debit or Standing Order ensures an 
increase in line with the predicted level of inflation, and is designed to 
encourage a safer and more efficient method of collection. 
 
Traders have been provided with the above information, and if any 
feedback is received from them it will be reported and discussed at the 
meeting. 
 

Agenda Item 5aPage 85



4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 

This would have been the final year of a three year agreement for an 
annual increase of 2.5%, which was originally made with the traders 
committee in 2008. This agreement was overridden by the decision in 
favour of a discount for 2009/2010. 

 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1     Financial Implications 
  

Based on full market occupancy & existing open market occupancy a 2% 
increase would result in an increase in income of £16500.00 pa.  

 
6.0 RISK ANALYSIS 

 
The increase in income for 2010/2011 does not cover the reduction due 
to the discount in 2009/2010, but as a relatively low increase to traders it 
will continue to assist in ensuring healthy stall occupancy 
   

7.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
None 

 
8.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
None 

 
 
 

Page 86



Agenda Item 6aPage 87
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	3a Fees & Charges (Adult Social Care)
	3b 2010-11 Inflationary Uplift for the joint Supporting People & Adult Social Care Contracts
	3c 2010-11 Inflationary Increases for Adult Social Care
	Inflationary Increases 2010-11 - APP 1.xls

	3d MODUS Software
	3e Request to waive Standing Orders for Visual Impairment Services
	3f Review of Direct Payments Policy & Procedure
	Draft Direct Payments Policy - APP 1.doc

	3g 2010/11 Charges for Riverview Gypsy Site
	4a Review of Fees and Charges
	5a Market Stall Charges
	6a Award of Contract for the Provision of a Minor Adaptation Service

